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FILE NO. 141041 RESOLUTION NO. 

1 [Fisherman's Wharf and Fisherman's Wharf Portside Community Benefit Districts - Annual 
Reports to the City - FYs 2009-2013] 

2 

3 Resolution receiving and approving annual reports for the Fisherman's Wharf 

4 Community Benefit District and Fisherman's Wharf Portside Community Benefit 

5 District for FYs 2009-2013, submitted as required by the Property and Business 

6 Improvement District Law of 1994, Section 36650 (California Streets and 

7 Highways Code, Sections 36600, et seq.), and the Districts' management 

8 contracts with the City. 

9 

10 WHEREAS, The Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District (CBD) was 

11 established by the Board of Supervisors in 2005, and the Fisherman's Wharf Portside 

12 Community Benefit District.(CBD) was established by the Board of Supervisors in 2006, 

13 as described below; and 

14 WHEREAS, Both the Fisherman's Wharf CBD and the Fisherman's Wharf 

15 Portside CBD are administered by the same owners' non-profit association, known as 

16 the Fisherman's Wharf Association, as described below; and 

17 WHEREAS, On June 7, 2005, in accordance with the Property and Business 

18 Improvement District Law of 1994, California Streets and Highways Code, Sections 

19 36600 et seq. (the "Act"), as augmented by Article 15 of the San Francisco Business 

20 and Tax Regulations Code ("Article 15"), the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution 

21 No: 386-05, "Resolution of Intention to Form the Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit 

22 District," expressing the City's intent to form the Fisherman's Wharf CBD, which is on 

23 file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File No. 050878; and 

24 WHEREAS, On July 26, 2005, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution 

25 
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No. 540-05, "Resolution to Establish the Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District," 

establishing the CBD for a period of 15 years commencing with FY2005-2006, which is 

on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File No. 051184; and 

WHEREAS, On January 10, 2006, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution 

No. 16-06, "Contract with Owners' Association for Administration of Fisherman's Wharf 

Community Benefit District," with the Fisherman's Wharf Association, approving a 

I contract with the Fisherman's Wharf Association for the management and 

I administration of the CBD (the Fisherman's Wharf Management Contract") which is on 

file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File No. 052026; and 

WHEREAS, In 2007 the Board of Supervisors approved the Fisherman's Wharf 

CBD's annual report for 2005-2006 in Resolution No. 345-07, which is on file with the 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File No. 070734; and 

WHEREAS, On October 24, 2006, in accordance with the Act, as augmented by 

Article 15, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 586-06, "Resolution of 

Intention to Form the Fisherman's Wharf Portside Community Benefit District," 

expressing the City's intent to form the Fisherman's Wharf Portside CBD, which is on 

file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File No. 061419; and 

WHEREAS, On December 12, 2006, the Board of Supervisors adopted 

Resolution No. 696-06, "Resolution to Establish the Fisherman's Wharf Portside 

Community Benefit District," establishing the CBD for a period of 14 years commencing 

with FY2005-2006, which is on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File No. 

061660;and 

WHEREAS, On June 19, 2007, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution 

No. 312-07, "Contract with Owners' Association for Administration of Fisherman's Wharf 

Portside Community Benefit District," with the Fisherman's Wharf Association, 

Supervisor Chiu 
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1 approving a contract with the Fisherman's Wharf Association for the management and 

2 administration of the CBD (the "Fisherman's Wharf Portside Management Contract") 
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which is on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File No. 070838; and 

WHEREAS, In 2011 the Board of Supervisors approved the Fisherman's Wharf 

CBD's and the Fisherman's Wharf Portside CBD's annual reports for FYs 2006-2007, 

2007-2008, and 2008-2009 in Resolution No. 15-11, on file with the Clerk of the Board 

of Supervisors in File No. 101358; and 

WHEREAS, The Fisherman's Wharf Association has submitted for the Board's 

rece~pt and approval annual reports for Fisherman's Wharf CBD and Fisherman's Wharf 

Portside CBD for FYs 2009-2010, 2010-2011, 2011-2012, and 2012-2013 (collectively, 

the "Annual Reports") as required by Section 36650 of the Act and Section 3.4 of the 

Fisherman's Wharf Management Contract and the Fisherman's Wharf Portside 

Management Contract; and 

WHEREAS, The Annual Reports are on file with the Clerk of the Board of 

Supervisors in File No. 141041, and are incorporated herein by reference as though 

fully set forth; and 

WHEREAS, Supporting documents, including, but not limited to, a transmittal 

letter and memorandum report from the City's Office of Economic and Workforce 

Development, dated October 3, 2014, and documentation from the Fisherman's Wharf 

Association for the Annual Reports are on file With the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

in File No. 141041; and 

1 WHEREAS, The Planning Department has determined that the actions contemplated in 

J this Resolution comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (California Public 

Resources Code, Sections 21000 et seq.); said determination is on file with the Clerk of the 

I 
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Board of Supervisors in File No. 141041, and is incorporated herein by reference; now, 

therefore, be it 
---- ---- -- ------- -------- -- --- ---

RESOLVED, That the Board of Supervisors hereby receives and approves the 

annual reports for the Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District and Fisherman's 

Wharf Portside Community Benefit District for FYs 2009-2010, 2010-2011, 2011-2012, 

and 2012-2013. 

Supervisor Chiu 
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BOARD of SUPERVISORS 

Sarah Jones 
Environmental Review Officer 
Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94103 

Dear Ms. Jones: 

October 14, 2014 

City Hall 
Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 

San Francisco 94102-4689 
Tel. No. 554-5184 
Fax No. 554-5163 

TDD/TTY No. 554-5227 

File No. 141041 

On October 7, 2014, Supervisor Chiu introduced the following legislation: 

File No. 141041 

Resolution receiving and approving annual reports for the Fisherman's 
Wharf Community Benefit District and Fisherman's Wharf Portside 
Community Benefit District for FYs 2009-2013, submitted as required by the 
Property and Business Improvement District Law of 1994, Section 36650 
(California Streets and Highways Code, Sections 36600, et seq.), and the 
Districts' management contracts with the City. 

This legislation is being transmitted to you for environmental review. 

Angela Calvillo, Clerk of the Board 

,_Y.<Pcr~/11~ 
By: Erica Major, Assistant Clerk 

Government Audit and Oversight Committee 

Attachment 

c: Joy Navarrete, Environmental Planning 
Jeanie Poling, Environmental Planning 

Not defined as a project under CEQA Sections 

15378 and 15060 (c) (2) because it does not 

result in a physical change in the 

environment. 

Joy 
Navarrete 

Digitally signed by Joy Navarrete 
ON: cn=Joy Navarrete, o=Planning, 
ou=Environmental Planning, 
email=joy.navarrete@sfgov.org, 
c=US 
Date: 2014.10.16 11 :31 :46 -07'00' 
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Sarah Jones 
Environmental Review Officer 
Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94103 

Dear Ms. Jones: 

October 14, 2014 

City Hall 
Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 

San Francisco 94102-4689 
Tel. No. 554-5184 
Fax No. 554-5163 

TDD/TTY No. 554-5227 

File No. 141041 

On October 7, 2014, Supervi?or Chiu introduced the following legislation: 

File No. 141041 

Resolution receiving and approving annual reports for the Fisherman's 
Wharf Community Benefit District and Fisherman's Wharf Portside 
Community Benefit District for FYs 2009-2013, submitted as required by the 
Property and Business Improvement District Law of 1994, Section 36650 
(California Streets and Highways Code, Sections 36600, et seq.), and the 
Districts' management contracts with the City. 

This legislation is being transmitted to you for environmental review. 

Angela Calvillo, Clerk of the Board 

YV~ 
By: Erica Major, Assistant Clerk 

Government Audit and Oversight Committee 

Attachment 

c: Joy Navarrete, Environmental Planning 
Jeanie Poling, Environmental Planning 



Caldeira, Rick (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

-· GAO fine: Thx~-

True, Judson 
Wednesday, October 08, 2014 11 :42 AM 
Caldeira, Rick (BOS) 
Re: Fisherman's Wharf CBD Annual Report 

On Oct 8, 2014, at 11:01 AM, "Caldeira, Rick (BOS)" <rick.caldeira@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Judson, 

Not sure who in your office put this forward but these items have typically gone to GAO, the 
introduction form requested for immediate adoption on the without reference agenda for 10/21. 
Please confirm, Rick. 
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Office of Economic and Workforce Development 

MEMO 

To: Supervisor David Chiu, District 3 

CC: San Francisco Board of Supervisors 

From: Crezia Ta no, OEWD Senior Project Manager 

City and County of San Francisco :: Edwin M. Lee, Mayor 
Economic and Workforce Development :: Todd Rufo, Director 

RE: Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District (Landside and Portside) 

Date: October 3, 2014 

This is a memo summarizing the performance of the Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District 
(FWCBD) for both "Landside" and "Portside" and an analysis of their financial statements (based on their 
audit) for the period between July 1, 2009, and June 30, 2013. 

Each year the CBD is required to submit a mid-year report, an annual report, and a CPA Financial Review 
or Audit. Fisherman's Wharf CBD has complied with the submission of all these requirements. OEWD 
staff, with assistance from the Controller's Office, reviewed these financial documents to monitor and 
report on whether they have complied with the rules per the Property and Business Improvement 
District Law of 1994, California Streets and Highways Code Sections 36600 Et Seq.; San Francisco's 
Business and Tax Regulations Code Article 15; the Fisherman's Wharf Association management contract 
with the City; and their Management Plan as approved by the Board of Supervisors in 2005 for Landside 
and 2006 for Portside. 

Also attached to this memo are the following documents: 
1. Annual Reports 

a. FY 2009-2010 
b. FY 2010-2011 
c. FY 2011-2012 
d. FY 2012-2013 

2. CPA Financial Review Reports 
a. FY 2009-2010 
b. FY 2010-2011 
c. FY 2011-2012 
d. FY 2012-2013 

3. Draft resolution from the Office of Economic and Workforce Development 

p: 415.554.6969 f. 415.554.6018 



Background 

The Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District includes two districts - the "Landside" property­
based district and "Portside" business-based district. 

-- •- -July-28, 2005: the-Beard-ef-Supervisers apprnved-the reselutien-that-established the prnperty­

based district called the Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District for 15 years (Resolution 
# 540-05). 

• December 19, 2006: the Board of Supervisors approved the resolution that established the 
business-based district called the Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District for 14 years 
(Resolution# 696-06). 

• January 10, 2006: the Board approved the contract for the administration and management of 
the Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District (Resolution# 16-06). 

• The CBD received assessment revenue for fiscal years 2005 -2013 for Landside and 2006-2013 
for Portside. 

Year Established 

Assessment Collection Period 

Services Start and End Date 

Initial Estimated Annual Budget 

Fiscal Year 
Executive Director 
Name of Nonprofit Owners' 
Association 

Basic Info about Fisherman's Wharf CBD 

Landside 2005 
Portside 2006 
Landside: FY 2005-06 to FY 2019-20 (July 1, 2005 to June 30, 
2020) 
Portside: FY 2006-07 to FY 2019-20 (July 1, 2006 to June 30, 
2020) 
Landside: January 1, 2006 - December 31, 2020 
Portside: January 1, 2007 - December 31, 2020 

Landside: $662,615 
Portside: $187,113 
July 1- June 30 
Troy Campbell 
Fisherman's Wharf Association of San Francisco 

The current CBD website, http://www.visitfishermanswharf.com/, includes all the pertinent information 
about the organization and their programs, a calendar of events, their Management Plan, Mid-Year 
Report, Annual Report and meeting schedules. 

Summary of Service Area Goals 

District Identity and Street Improvements (DISI) 
District Identity and Street Improvements service includes marketing and public relations and street 
enhancements for the district. The Landside CBD Management Plan calls for 41% of the budget to be 
spent on DISI while the Portside CBD Management Plan calls for 70% of the budget to be spent in this 

service area. 
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Street Operations, Beautification and Order (SOBO) 
Street Operations, Beautification and Order service area includes street maintenance, beautification, 
and safety and emergency preparedness. FWCBD contracts with Costless Maintenance Service Company 
(CMSC) Block by Block to provide removal of litter from sidewalks seven days a week year round, annual 

-sidewalksteam-cleaning,-ongoing-power-washingand remo\laLof.graffitiwithin72 hours.Security.irithe 
district is provided by two SFPD 10B officers SIX days a week from July to early October. Three full-time 
and one part-time ambassador provide assistance with directions and questions, communication with 
law enforcement and the Port of San Francisco, and outreach to homeless on the wharf. The Landside 
CBD Management Plan calls for 29% of the budget to be spent on SOBO while the Portside CBD 
Management Plan does not allocate funds for this service area. 

Administration and Corporate Operations 
The Landside and Portside CBD Management Plan calls for 20% of the budget to be spent on 
administration and corporate operations. FWCBD is staffed by a full-time Executive Director who serves 
as the focal point person and advocate for Fisherman's Wharf CBD. FWCBD board has twenty-five (25) 
board members that represent the diverse property and business owners in the district. In addition, 
there are three non-voting community representatives on the board that include the National Park 
Service, the Fishing Industry, and the Port of San Francisco. The board meets every fourth Thursday of 
the month. Board members are expected to serve on at least one committee. The five committees 
include: 

• Marketing/District Identity & Streetscape Improvements - The Marketing/District Identity & 
Streetscape Improvements committee works to promote visitation to Fisherman's Wharf and 
meets the second Tuesday of the month. 

• PIERSafe - The PIERsafe committee works to create a safety and emergency preparedness for 
businesses and residents in the Fisherman's wharf community and meets the first Thursday of 
the month. Fisherman Wharf CBD regularly holds trainings, meetings and drills to ensure safety 
for merchants, workers and visitors on the wharf. 

• Sustainability/Zero - The Sustainability/Zero Waste committee works to assist businesses and 
residents in reaching the City's goals of becoming 100% sustainable by the year 2020 and meets 
every two months. 

• Street Operations and Beautification - The Street Operations and Beautification committee 
works to ensure a clean and safe commercial district and meet on the second Tuesday of the 
month. 

• Transportation Improvement - The Transportation Improvement committee works to help 
mitigate traffic congestion and improve vehicle and pedestrian safety and meets every two 
months. 

Summary of Accomplishments, Challenges, and Delivery of Service Areas 

FY 2009-2010 

District Identity and Street Improvements (DISI) 

• Sponsored the 2009 Fourth of July Celebration and Fleet Week 

• Produced the Holiday Lights & Sights Marketing Campaign 

• Produced the first annual Crab Festival 
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• Sponsored the San Francisco Ocean Film Festival at the Aquarium ofthe Bay 

• Conducted two waves of intercept surveys to updated Fisherman's Wharf visitor research data 

Street Operations, Beautification and Order {SOBO) 
• ·· -Replanted and-expanded flower baskets -- - -

• Provided cellphones to the two regularly scheduled SFPD beat officers for communicating issues 
Administration and Corporate Operations 

• FWCBD worked with San Francisco Planning Department to develop improvements to the 
district. A Public Realm draft was published in June 2010 and presented to the community. The 
plan will make upgrades to pedestrian safety and usability, as well as traffic flow. 

• The Sustainability/Zero committee were awarded an $80,000 two-year grant from the San 
Francisco Department of Environment to implement a zero waste program on the wharf 

• The Transportation Improvement committee worked with SFMTA to obtain approval of new 
short-term parking locations on the wharf 

FY 2010-2011 

District Identity and Street Improvements {DISI} 

• Sponsored the 2010 Fourth of July Celebration, Fleet Week and Salmon Aid 

• Produced the Holiday Lights & Sights boat parade 

• Revamped the website and integrated it with news and social-media 

• Redesigned and improved the Fisherman's Wharf brochure 

• Helped fund the EIR for Jefferson Street Public Realm Improvements 
Street Operations, Beautification and Order (SOBO} 

• Replanted and expanded flower baskets to a total of 67 

• Illuminated trees along Taylor Street from Jefferson to Bay Street 

• Partnered with DPW on the "Clean Sweep" of the wharf in July 

• Provided cellphones to the two regularly scheduled SFPD beat officers for communicating issues 

• SFPD 108 officers Issued 113 citations and made 30 arrests from July to October 
Administration and Corporate Operations 

• FWCBD worked closely with the San Francisco Planning Department to improve the public realm 
conditions along Jefferson Street. FWCBD has shared in the financing of both the mitigated and 
negative declaration and the construction drawings for the Public Realm Plan. Planning 
workshops were held and to shape consensus and agreed on six key elements of the plan 
including: pedestrian friendly streets and sidewalks, safe routes for bicycles, good for 
commerce, works well with transit, eases traffic congestion, and facilitates parking. 

• The FWCBD worked closely with the City to prioritize the Public Realm Improvements project for 
completion prior to America's Cup race in 2013. 

• The Transportation Improvement committee worked with Supervisor David Chiu's office and 
MTA on new tour bus legislation. 

FY 2011-2012 

District Identity and Street Improvements {DISI} 

• Sponsored the 2011 Fourth of July Celebration, Fleet Week and Salmon Aid 

4 



• Produced the Holiday Lights & Sights boat parade with 40 boats participating 

• Redesigned and launched website and integrated it with smartphones and social media 

• Organized and sponsored a Family Fun Fair in the parking lot at Jefferson and Mason Streets 

• Continued partnership with SF Travel and Chaperon in promoting the district through 
-advertisement-in-publications-- -- -- -

Street Operations, Beautification and Order (SOBO) 

• Replanted and expanded flower baskets to a total of 75 

• Illuminated trees at Conrad Park and on Taylor Street from Jefferson to Bay Street 

• Partnered with DPW on the "Clean Sweep" of the wharf in July 

• Provided cellphones to the two regularly scheduled SFPD beat officers for communicating issues 

• Worked with SFPD to curtail aggressive panhandling and behavioral issues in the district 

• SFPD lOB officers issued 160 citations and made 20 arrests from July to October 
Administration and Corporate Operations 

• The Sustainability/Zero committee created a Zero Waste Business Recognition Program for 
Fisherman's Wharf to recognize those business recycling 90% or more of their waste 

• The Transportation Improvement committee continued to work with Supervisor David Chiu's 
office and MTA on new tour bus legislation and assisted with businesses in obtaining white 

zones 

• FWCBD Public Realm/Jefferson Street Committee worked with the San Francisco Planning 
Department and ROMA Design to engage the community on exploring options in improving and 
redesigning Jefferson Street from Aquatic Park to Pier 35. The goal of improving the street 
conditions on Jefferson Street will provide improved conditions for bicyclist· and pedestrians 
while alleviating the crowded conditions on the sidewalks 

FY 2012-2013 

District Identity and Street Improvements {DISI) 

• Sponsored the 2012 Fourth of July Celebration, Fleet Week and Salmon Aid 

• Produced the Holiday Lights & Sights Boat Parade 

• Partnered with Andrew Freeman & Co. to produce "Crab Fest 2012" 

• Produced a "Lagoon Concert and Lighting" event and worked with a local bus company to bring 
children from the Bayview YMCA and Telegraph Hill Neighborhood Center 

• Updated the website to a mobile version 
• Organized and sponsored a Family Fun Fair in the parking lot at Jefferson and Mason Streets as 

part as part of the Sunday Streets events in the city 

• Reprinted 80,000 Fisherman's Wharf brochures due to increased demand 

• Continued partnership with SF Travel and Chaperon in promoting the district through 

advertisement in publications 
Street Operations, Beautification and Order (SOBO) 

• Replanted and expanded flower baskets to a total of 75 

• Illuminated trees at Conrad Park and on Taylor Street from Jefferson to Bay Street which helped 

prevent crime and loitering 

• Replaced the Iconic Crab Wheel at Jefferson and Taylor 

• Partnered with DPW on the "Clean Sweep" of the wharf in July 

• Provided cellphones to the two regularly scheduled SFPD beat officers for communicating issues 
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• Worked with SFPD to curtail aggressive panhandling and behavioral issues in the district 

• SFPD 10B officers issued 234 citations and made over 21 arrests from July to October 

Administration and Corporate Operations 
- ---.-- -un-Janl.fary3~ 2013-CtfnstFi..ictiorilJegan e>rnhe-Pnase n'.ff tne Jefferson sue-etpro]ecCFWCBD 

first envisioned this project in 2006 as one of its goals as a CBD. This project is a testament to 
their diligence and vision, the FWCBD continues to work with DPW and the community to 
minimize impacts. To that end, FWCBD has hosted numerous meetings to inform the public 
about the construction. The CBD created a website, http://www.newjeffersonstreet.com/, with 
pertinent information about construction updates and progress. 

• The Transportation Improvement committee worked with Supervisor David Chiu's office and 
MTA on new tour bus legislation. 

FWCBD Annual Budget Analysis 

OEWD's staff reviewed the following budget related benchmarks for FWCBD: 

• BENCHMARK 1: Whether the variance between the budget amounts for each service category 
was within 10 percentage points from the budget identified in the Management Plan 
(Agreement for the Administration of the "Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District", 
Section 3.9 - Budget; Agreement for the Administration of the "Fisherman's Wharf Portside 
Community Benefit District", Section 3.9 - Budget) 

• BENCHMARK 2: Whether five percent (5%) of Landside's actuals came from sources other than 
assessment revenue (CA Streets & Highways Code, Section 36650(B}(6}; Agreement for the 
Administration of the "Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District", Section 3.4 - Annual 
Reports) 

• BENCHMARK 3: Whether the variance between the budget amount and actual expenses within 
a fiscal year was within 10 percent (Agreement for the Administration of the "Fisherman's Wharf 
Community Benefit District", Section 3.9 - Budget; Agreement for the Administration of the 
"Fisherman's Wharf Portside Community Benefit District", Section 3.9 - Budget) 

• BENCHMARK 4: Whether FWCBD is indicating the amount of funds to be carried forward into 
the next fiscal year and designating projects to be spent in current fiscal year (CA Streets & 
Highways Code, Section 36650(B}(6}} 

FY 2009-2010 

BENCHMARK 1: Whether the variance between the budget amounts for each service category was 
within 10 percentage points from the budget identified in the Management Plan 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement for both Portside and Landside. See tables below. 

Landside 

Service Category Management %of FY 2009- %of Variance 
Plan Budget Budget 2010 Budget Percentage 

Budget Points 

District Identity and $255,000 41% $232,417 37% -4 
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Street Improvements 

Sidewalk Operations & 
$181,130 29% $198,442 31% +2 

Beautification 

Administrative 
_i1_?5,QQO ____ 20% - filc3_il ,_1_ 6 5 21% +1 

Expenses- ----- -- - - ------ --- --- - - - - ----- -- - ------

Contingency Reserve $61,033 10% $71,620 11% +1 

TOTAL $622,615 100% $636,644 100% 

Portside 

Service Category Management %of FY 2009- %of Variance 
Plan Budget Budget 2010 Budget Percentage 

Budget Points 

District Identity and 
$130,979 70% $141,756 69% -1 

Street Improvements 

Administrative 
$37,423 20% $40,135 20% 0 

Expenses 

Contingency Reserve $18,711 10% $22,480 11% +1 

TOTAL $187,113 100% $204,371 100% 

BENCHMARK 2: Whether five percent (5%) of Landside's actuals came from sources other than 
assessment revenue 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement. Assessment revenue was $554,407 or 82% of actuals and non­
assessment revenue was $119,473 or 18% of actuals. See table below. 

Revenue Sources FY 2009-2010 % of Actuals 
Actuals 

Landside Special Benefit Assessments $ 554,407 

Total assessment revenue $554,407 82% 

Contributions and Sponsorships $42,625 

Grants $25,250 

Donations* $50,125 
Interest Earned $1,473 

Total non-assessment revenue** $119,473 18% 

Total $673,880 100% 

*in-kind contributions to FWCBD 
**non-assessment revenue applied to 5% General Benefit requirement 

BENCHMARK 3: Whether the variance between the budget amount and actual expenses within a fiscal 
year was within 10 percentage points 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement for Landside, but did not meet this requirement for Portside. 
Portside had a variance of 13 percentage points for District Identity and Street. See tables below. 
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Landside 
Service Category FY 2009-2010 %of FY 2009- %of Variance 

Budget Budget 2010 Budget Percentage 
--- ---- - --- -- - -- - ----- - ---- ------ --------- Actuals --- ---- - Points -

District Identity and 
$232,417 

Street Improvements 
37% $193,874 34% -3 

Sidewalk Operations & 
$198,442 31% $196,997 35% 

+4 
Beautification 

Administrative 

Expenses 
$134,165 21% $176,727 31% +10 

Contingency Reserve $71,620 11% * -
TOTAL $636,644 100% $567,598 100% 

Portside 
Service Category FY 2009-2010 %of FY 2009- %of Variance 

Budget Budget 2010 Budget Percentage 
Actuals Points 

District Identity and 
$141,756 

Street Improvements 
69% $123,508 82% +13 

Administrative 
$40,135 20% 

Expenses 
$26,823 18% -2 

Contingency Reserve $22,480 11% * -
TOTAL $204,371 100% $150,331 100% 

*Contingency Reserve is redeployed throughout the year to meet the needs of the CBD 

BENCHMARK 4: Whether FWCBD is indicating the amount of funds to be carried forward into the next 
fiscal year and designating projects to be spent in current fiscal year 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement. Please note: There is a period between when the City collects 
assessment payment and when the City disburses the funds to the CBD. As a result, a CBD typically has a 
fund balance at the end of the fiscal year that is equal to about 6 months of their annual budget. See 
table below. 

FY 2009-10 Carryover Disbursement $204,360 

Designated Projects for FY 2010-11 

DISI Special marketing Projects $50,000 

Public Realm Projects $50,000 

SOBO Special Street Projects $104,360 

Total Designated amount for FY 2010-11 $204,360 
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FY 2010-2011 

BENCHMARK 1: Whether the variance between the budget amounts for each service category was 
within 10 percentage points from the budget identified in the Management Plan 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD did not meet this requirement for Landside, but did meet this requirement for 
Portside. Land had a variance of 14 percentage points for DIS/. See tables below. 

Landside 
Service Category Management %of FY 2010- %of Variance 

Plan Budget Budget 2011 Budget Percentage 
Budget Points 

District Identity and 
$255,000 41% $190,298 29% -14 

Street Improvements 

Sidewalk Operations & 
$181,130 29% $252,300 38% +9 

Beautification 

Administrative 
$125,000 20% $156,740 24% +4 

Expenses 

Contingency Reserve $61,033 10% $65,132 10% 0 

TOTAL $622,615 100% $664,470 100% 

Portside 

Service Category Management %of FY 2010- %of Variance 
Plan Budget Budget 2011 Budget Percentage 

Budget Points 
District Identity and 

$130,979 70% $145,157 75% +5 
Street Improvements 

Administrative 
$37,423 20% $27,660 14% -6 

Expenses 

Contingency Reserve $18,711 10% $20,568 11% +1 

TOTAL $187,113 100% $193,385 100% 

BENCHMARK 2: Whether five percent (5%) of Landside's actuals came from sources other than 
assessment revenue 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement. Assessment revenue was $586,608 or 81% of actuals and non­
assessment revenue was $141,381 or 19% of actuals. See table below. 

Revenue Sources FY 2010-2011 % of Actuals 
. Actuals 

Landside Special Benefit Assessments $ 586,608 

Total assessment revenue $586,608 81% 

Contributions and Sponsorships $15,850 

Grants $80,000 
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Donations* $43,713 

Interest Earned $1,818 

Total non-assessment revenue** $141,381 19% 

Total $727,989 100% 

*in-kind contributions to FWCBD 
**non-assessment revenue applied to 5% General Benefit requirement 

BENCHMARK 3: Whether the variance between the budget amount and actual expenses within a fiscal 
year was within 10 percentage points 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement for both Landside and Portside. See tables below 

Landside 
Service Category FY 2010-2011 %of FY 2010- %of Variance 

Budget Budget 2011 Budget Percentage 
Actuals Points 

District Identity and 
$190,298 29% $213,928 32% +3 

Street Improvements 

Sidewalk Operations & 
$252,300 38% $295,195 43% +5 

Beautification 

Administrative 
$156,740 24% $169,849 25% +1 

Expenses 

Contingency Reserve $65,132 10% * -
TOTAL $664,470 100% $678,972 100% 

Portside 
Service Category FY 2010-2011 % of FY 2010- % of Variance 

Budget Budget 2011 Budget Percentage 
Actuals Points 

District Identity and 
$145,157 75% $134,666 83% +8 

Street Improvements 

Administrative 
$27,660 14% $26,815 17% +3 

Expenses 

Contingency Reserve $20,568 11% * -
TOTAL $193,385 100% $161,481 100% 

*Contingency Reserve is redeployed throughout the year to meet the needs of the CBD 

BENCHMARK 4: Whether FWCBD is indicating the amount of funds to be carried forward into the next 
fiscal year and designating projects to be spent in current fiscal year 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement. Please note: There is a period between when the City collects 
assessment payments and when the City disburses the funds to 1the CBD. As a result, a CBD typically has a 
fund balance at the end of the fiscal year that is equal to about 6 months of their annual budget. See 
table below. 

10 



FY 2010-11 Carryover Disbursement $206,000 

Designated Projects for FY 2011-2012 

Public Realm Projects $50,000 

DISI Special marketing Projects $50,000 

SOBO Special Street Projects $106,000 

Total designated amount for FY 2010 - 2011 $206,000 

FY 2011-2012 

BENCHMARK 1: Whether the variance between the budget amounts for each service category was 
within 10 percentage points from the budget identified in the Management Plan. 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD did not meet this requirement for Landside, but did meet the requirement for 
Portside. Landside's DIS/ and SOB line items had a variance of 15 percentage points. See tables below. 

Landside 

Service Category Management %of FY 2011- %of Variance 
Plan Budget Budget 2012 Budget Percentage 

Budget Points 

District Identity and 
$255,000 41% $163,422 26% -15 

Street Improvements 

Sidewalk Operations & 
$181,130 29% $277,800 44% +15 

Beautification 

Administrative 
$125,000 20% $131,778 21% +1 

Expenses 

Contingency Reserve $61,033 10% $63,600 10% 0 

TOTAL $622,615 100% $636,600 100% 

Portside 

Service Category Management %of FY 2011- %of Variance 
Plan Budget Budget 2012 Budget Percentage 

Budget Points 

District Identity and 
$130,979 70% $137,778 64% -6 

Street Improvements 

Administrative 
$37,423 20% 

Expenses 
$54,422 25% +5 

Contingency Reserve $18,711 10% $22,100 10% 0 

TOTAL $187,113 100% $214,300 100% 

BENCHMARK 2: Whether five percent (5%) of Landside's actuals came from sources other than 
assessment revenue. 
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ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement. Assessment revenue was $565,564 or 92% of actuals and non­
assessment revenue was $48,918 or 8% of actuals. See table below. 

-- _ __ llevgru.1_e _S.Q1..1Kes -- --- --- -- EY.20.11-2012 _ _%of Actuals 

Actuals 

Landside Special Benefit Assessments $ 565,564 

Total assessment revenue $565,564 92% 

Contributions and Sponsorships $7,500 

Grants $0 

Donations* $39,225 

Interest Earned $2,193 

Total non-assessment revenue** $48,918 8% 

Total $614,482 100% 

*in-kind contributions to FWCBD 
**non-assessment revenue applied to 5% General Benefit requirement 

BENCHMARK 3: Whether the variance between the budget amount and actual expenses within a fiscal 
year was within 10 percentage points. 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement for Landside, but did not meet this requirement for Portside. 
Portside had a variance of 14 percentage points for District Identity and Street. See tables below. 

Landside 

Service Category FY 2011-2012 %of FY 2011- %of Variance 

Budget Budget 2012 Budget Percentage 

Actuals Points 

District Identity and 
$163,422 26% $163,358 28% +2 

Street Improvements 

Sidewalk Operations & 
$277,800 44% $279,691 48% +4 

Beautification 

Administrative 
$131,778 21% 

Expenses 
$134,737 23% +2 

Contingency Reserve $63,600 10% * - -
TOTAL $636,600 100% $577,786 100% 

Portside 

Service Category FY 2011-2012 %of FY 2011- %of Variance 

Budget Budget 2012 Budget Percentage 

Actuals Points 

District Identity and 
$137,778 64% $134,081 78% +14 

Street Improvements 
Administrative $54,422 25% $38,400 22% -3 
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Expenses 

Contingency Reserve $22,100 10% * - -
TOTAL $214,300 100% $172,481 100% 

*Contingency Reserve is redeployed throughout the year to meet the needs of the CBD 
---- ---- --- ----- ------ - ------ ---- -- - -- ---

BENCHMARK 4: Whether FWCBD is indicating the amount of funds to be carried forward into the next 
fiscal year and designating projects to be spent in current fiscal year 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement. Please note: There is a period between when the City collects 
assessment payment and when the City disburses the funds to the CBD. As a result, a CBD typically has a 
fund balance at the end of the fiscal year that is equal to about 6 months of their annual budget. See 
table below. 

Carryover from FY 2011-2012 $304,400 

Designated Projects for FY 2012-2013 

Public Realm Projects $50,000 

DISI Special marketing Projects $127,000 

SOBO Special Street Projects $127,000 

Total Designated amount for FY 2012 - 2013 $304,000 

FY 2012-2013 

BENCHMARK 1: Whether the variance between the budget amounts for each service category was 
within 10 percentage points from the budget identified in the Management Plan 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD did not meet this requirement for Landside. but did meet this requirement for 
Portside. Landside's DIS/ had a variance of 15 percentage points, and for SOB had a variance for 14 
percentage points. See tables below. 

Landside 

Service Category Management %of FY 2012-2013 %of Variance 
Plan Budget Budget Budget Budget Percentage 

Points 
District Identity and 

$255,000 41% $168,490 26% -15 
Street Improvements 

Sidewalk Operations & 
$181,130 29% $279,800 43% +14 

Beautification 

Administrative 
$125,000 20% $139,000 21% +1 

Expenses 

Contingency Reserve $61,033 10% $63,310 10% 0 

TOTAL $622,615 100% $650,600 100% 
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Portside 

Service Category Management %of FY 2012-2013 %of Variance 
Plan Budget Budget Budget Budget Percentage 

Points 

Disrrict -1aenfiW cind --- -- - --- - -- --- -- ---- ---- ---- ---- -- ---

Street Improvements 
$130,979 70% $138,810 70% 0 

Administrative 
$37,423 20% $34,500 17% -3 -

Expenses 
Contingency Reserve $18,711 10% $24,690 12% +2 

TOTAL $187,113 100% $198,000 100% 

BENCHMARK 2: Whether five percent {5%) of Landside's actuals came from sources other than 
assessment revenue 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement. Assessment revenue was $609,603 or 92% of actuals and non­
assessment revenue was $52,971 or 8% of actuals. See table below. 

Revenue Sources FY 2012-2013 % of Actuals 
Actuals 

Landside Special Benefit Assessments $ 609,603 

Total assessment revenue $609,603 92% 

Contributions and Sponsorships $0 

Grants $0 

Donations* $47,086 
Interest Earned $5,885 

Total non-assessment revenue** $52,971 8% 

fotal $665,574 100% 

*in-kind contributions to FWCBD 
**non-assessment revenue applied to 5% General Benefit requirement 

BENCHMARK 3: Whether the variance between the budget amount and actual expenses within a fiscal 
year was within 10 percentage points 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement for Landside, but did not meet this requirement for Portside. 
Portside had a variance of 13 percentage points for District Identity and Street. See tables below 

Landside 

Service Category FY 2012-2013 %of FY 2012-2013 %of Variance 
Budget Budget Actuals Budget Percentage 

Points 

District Identity and 
$168,490 26% $181,334 28% +2 

Street Improvements 
Sidewalk Operations & $279,800 43% $341,156 52% +9 
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Beautification 

Administrative 
Expenses 

$139,000 21% $132,820 20% -1 

Contingency Reserve* $63,310 10% * - -
TOTAL $650,600 100% $655,310 100% 

Portside 
Service Category FY 2012-2013 %of FY 2012-2013 %of Variance 

Budget Budget Actuals Budget Percentage 
Points 

District Identity and 
$138,810 70% $152,614 83% +13 

Street Improvements 

Administrative 
Expenses 

$34,500 17% $31,158 17% 0 

Contingency Reserve $24,690 12% * - -
TOTAL $198,000 100% $183,772 100% 

*Contingency Reserve is redeployed throughout the year to meet the needs of the CBD 

BENCHMARK 4: Whether FWCBD is indicating the amount of funds to be carried forward into the next 
fiscal year and designating projects to be spent in current fiscal year 

ANALYSIS: FWCBD met this requirement. Please note: There is a period between when the City collects 
assessment payment and when the City disburses the funds to the CBD. As a result, a CBD typically has a 
fund balance at the end of the fiscal year that is equal to about 6 months of their annual budget. See 
table below. 

Carryover from FY 2012-2013 $227,600 

Designated Projects for FY 2013-14 

DISI Special Projects $127,500 

SOBO Special Projects $100,100 

Total Designated amount for FY 2013-14 $227,600 

* the FWCBD 2012-2013 annual report did not designate the carryover amount, information 

provided by email 
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Findings and Recommendations 

Within the review periods of FY 2009-10, FY 2010-11, FY 2011-12, and FY 2012-13, the Fisherman's 
Wharf CBD generally met the expectations and requirements as set by the California Street and 

____________ l:figbwav~Code SJ!~1iQn 36650-36651;_ th~_~gre~_rnent for_the_AdminjstcatL0_11_gflhe_''Eisbermao~sWharf 
Community Benefit District; and the Agreement for the Administration of the "Fisherman's Wharf 
Portside Community Benefit District". 

However, it is noted that the Fisherman's Wharf CBD, continues to have difficulty with meeting the 
requirement of being within 10 percentage points for the District Identity and Street Improvements 
Budget Line for both the Landside and Portside Districts. OEWD recommends that the Fisherman's 
Wharf CBD actively work toward improving their performance, and provide updates on their effort in 
their mid-year reports submitted to OEWD. Additionally, due to the complexity of having two 
management districts for Fisherman's Wharf CBD, it is OEWD's recommendation that the CBD should 
track how funds are expended according to each management plan in both their Annual Report and in 
the Annual CPA Review. 

Conclusion 

Fisherman's Wharf CBD has performed well in implementing the service plan of both the Landside and 
Portside areas. Fisherman's Wharf CBD has continued to successfully market and produce events such as 
4th of July, Fleet Week, and Holiday Lights and Sights. Fisherman's Wharf CBD has increased their 
opportunities in partnering with community stakeholders and numerous municipal agencies for the 
implementation of the Jefferson Street Public Realm Plan. Fisherman's Wharf CBD has an active board 
of directors and committee members; and OEWD believes the Fisherman's Wharf CBD will continue to 
successfully carryout its mission and service plans. 
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Deal' C:omJ:+unity :ue1uller, 'Jyly 2010 

iJih.e.~gqg-2ino ,fisi:a'l .saw 1th~ cgnt(nu.ed1groy1th and sui;!'•S§ of,our)!' rga_nizati.OQ 1byt sa,Jly in,c;'Jyqe(! th~IPassing ,of 9ur Board 
Presiflent Steve \T/iez]:>owsJ<i. Stev.e w~s il~tr.uetfriend •of .flshe.m~n'·s lWh.arf and wof~J!!l 'ti_rel~s§ly to s.uppor,t the lFW:GBID. Stevg 
lgd Jhe §UG~essful 1effqrt to cr~atc •lhe Port,si\f.e-Q81D an,9'5<!'rv~d@n lb0ih the@gard @fllDireG)ors;i.nd Execytive.'C9mmittece prior•to 

bei;ominMhe Presigent in 2909. Stev~·~ ~gsnmitmen! to .th~ IFWC!llD, even .!lJJrin,g l~is ~gura,ggo~ bi!ti!e, vta~ ,an in5piretion t!j 
t\le Bgard and the Staff.of themganlzation. At .the req]J.esl of-Steve's wi(e anp ·da~hter. th'< ;F~YJCBID ha~ create~ a fund to bu!Jd 
a memoricil ·r~osg: garden on Fisherman's Wharfito lhonpr Steve. !Plans ar~ un~ern~CJY ~nd ffib~ Stevg Wi~iboyJski 1Mgmoria,l R9se 
GarCfen ~..,m tbe de~icated 1fhis Fall. Th~ accomp'lis'hments hjg'.hl(ghted in this annual re,gort are th.t! Ultimate testament to-Steve's 

leadership a~.9 we w·g uld ll ike to de~ii;atJ! this annual 1report to him. 

As the CBD enters its fifth yg.ar of exis:tence 1tl\vas important for the board to 1g~in c9nsens~s o,nJi vision for organh::ationts1nextrfiveiyears. 
In July, lwelncreascd our number ofB_oard ofGirc:ctors from 19 to :.?5 to ·all.9.w f9r a greatgr diversity 'pf.._oi;_ganizatisrns ,an_d poin_ts of yiew. In 
SeptemQ.gr1 the l bg-;;irg lp~rticip_ated in@. ~ie~1planning. rgtr~at to disci.fss ithe future Qir§_ctjonlofthe QBID. Whil~ lthgre was i;onsensus 
th~.t the corg1P-rgg@ms of the organization wgre dgfinjtejy appro,priat~ it\Vas also agr._ee9 that th__er.e1w.e:~ thrg.e an~~s· offgcus that Sh_ould 
~_g adde_9.1As a trS$Ult, three rne..v c9rnmittee.s, Sustaina!;iility.•0rganiza_tion, and,(:9mmunity Developm§;nt have been ~tabltshgd eaCh with 

'! ~p~c;ific ,str;1t~ic 'focus 1to strengthen the FW~BD. Rodney Fong, gu r.Jmmediate Ra..st Pres.idgnt1was ing rumental in _the development 
anij'l_eadership of the s!r<rt~gic,Planning.,etreat, an.d.we lhanklhim for al l'his elf.orts\()n behalf of1th~ f\'/CBlll. 

§>.ur a,,omplishments are indyded in •this annual report but here are a few rhi,ghlights; 

!iei;ur,,,ll a partnersh,ip b~_twgen the FWOB!;1, th_e,SF 'Planning 

0."PJirtment, the Mayor's ,ofli~.l' and llh~ Port of S;m Franpsco 
~o fund th.e §nvironm~ntal lrnpi!ct'Repor! (EIR) in supB,ort of 
the Pu.blic ,Rcalm plan f0r Fisherman's Whal'f. 
Par,tnered with 1the 'City LofS~an ifrandsco to support the 4th of 

July ,(lele.bration on IFish.crm.an's Wlmf. 
P~rtnerecj \with the .~City qf S_an Fr,;md~co on th_e ~und.ay Stre_e: ts 
evgnt ans! _had the !!Vent end With a Family Fitness F~air iin the 

h.eart of Fisherman's Wharf. 

8eceJviad •meg_ia c9yerage for ,thd'hird Ann~al Pl5Rs'!fe 
Emgrgenoy ,Prcparcdness 11D·ri11 011 !he 20th Anniv.f'~ary of.the 
bgm; 1Prieta earthqyake. . 

\Supported Fleet'\Vcek;?an Fran,iseo thrgu~h a Major 
~rwns9_rsh\p (or Fi§herman 's 'Wh..arfith~t.P~livered hun:Qreds of 
thousan8s•ofvisitors to 1the Wharf. 
S~cured $195,090 iq gran ~ . ·Awarded S25,ooo from the 
l'Vlayor's 0ffi.ce to ~pand the 1flower basket prpgram to 60% 

more of th.c Wharf. Awar.d..e.9 $80.000 from the 'Department of 
th~ 1Environmen_t to su,pport Fisherman's Wh.arf ~ecoming a 
-Zer.o ·Wastc •Zonc, 

As w.e look 3}lga~ to the ?-019-2011 ye.ar, rour fog.is is on irru:Jlemen1ing1the PybJic Rearm PIE_n a§. detailed by1the Planning departr.:n!!nt on our 

IJu11e 9, 2010 comm.u.niyw9rkshop. Theco·mmynity has eni,braced•th.e plan anpltt's l9dkin~ f91Ward to thg c9mpletion.ofthe lEnviri>nmen1al 
Impact R~port, gurr.eajiy unsleMay, so \ye1may1m9ve fo i;\varP1With the prqje,£t. Our oi;gani~tion 1 is 1resear~ching v;nious. funding me~hanism ito 

fully lmplem~nt thg1plan .andlis l.Q.oking ahead t0 th.e fi_naicco111pleti9n,,ofthis, long awalted1pr9jccl • 

We 1.thank you for your !;=OOtributions to the FWCBI!> and encourai...ge1you to r~ag ab9u! the accampli~h.men!S of the lCBE> included 

in thi_s fnid-y,ear report. If you are ,not already involved with the '9rganizati.o,n we woJ.IJd <!Sk th~ t you ~onsider jaining1one, 0f our 
committees where >you can m.ake a ~Hfference. 

~~ 
~~< 

ID.avip Ber)ley 
President 

A/ ?/,t 71 /J jlt'-t/ !4"/(fto4l::._.-"' 

Keyln Carroll 

Executive Director 

Dis trict Identity and Street Improvements (DIS!): Marketing 

2009 Fo urth of July Celebration: participation \'/ith special 

offers for visitors, web site build-out and event sponsorship 

r-lcc.t Wec k 2009: Major sponsorship negotiated to include 

print and broadcast. District parlicipated in Fleet Week guide 

with special offers for military personnel and visilors 
Holiday Lights & Sights M:ukct ing Campaign: 

November/December, 2009, including: 

Lighting of fishing boats in the lagoons from PIER 39 to 
Jefferson and Hyde Streets 
Advertising in SF Examiner and on F·Line Historic Trolley Cars 
Street banner program on The Embarcadero 
Lighted decorations on the world famous "Crab Wheel" 
Holiday Lights & Sights Boat Parade 
Over 40 boats participated including Fishing Fleet, St. 
Francis Yacht C::lub, SF Fire and Police Departments, PIER 
39 harbor, National Park Service and Sea Scouts. 
Television news coverage on KTVU (Channel 2) & KGO 

(Channel 7) 

Headline feature in the SF Chronicle 
Crab Festiv:.::i l: Febru~ry, 2010 

First Annual Celebrity Crab Cracking Con lest: January 28, 2010 
Television Campaign partnered with Alioto's and Fog 

Harbor Restaurants 
Advertising in SF Examiner, Bay Area Parent, SF Guide, 

sfgate.com, yahoo.com, comcast.com 
Street banner program on The Embarcadero 

The campaign delivered over 6,000,000 media impressions 

Sponsorship Participation with 2010 San Francisco Ocean 
Film Festival at the Aquarium of the Bay 

~~""!..~ 

Fi.s11e';.li~au·s 

~~ 

San F1·:mcisco Ocean Film Fcsti1Jal: February, 2010 

· Sponsored the film festival at the Aquarium of the Bay 
Suri.day Street.:;: March, 2010 

Sponsored Family Fitness Fair which generated strong 
media coverage on television stations, print and online. _ 

Also featured at City Hall press conference. 

Online: The official Fisherman's Wharf website, 

www.visitfishermanswharf.com, continued to show strong 
increases during the year with a i5.6% increase in unique 

visitors over 2009. Since the slart of the website in July, 2007 

unique visitors have grown from 47,000 to over 200,000 

annually. Added navigational sites for Meeting & Event 
Planning, Wineries, and Nightlife. 
Vi sitors ' Rcsc;irch: Spring/Summer 2010. Conducted two 

waves of interviews to update Fisherman's Wbarf visitor 
research data. 

D.lvid Chiu, president of the S.a n Franci sco Board of Supe rvisors, and i.l is r.id Re)·es, 
Executive Sous Chef from Bi stro Boudin , use teamwork to become the first ;•,inners the 
Celcbrity Crab Cracking ContcsL Their winning efforts resulted in a 51,000 donation to 
the North BeJch Citizen's Organiz:ilion selected by Supervisor Chiu. 



Street Op erations, Beautification a n d 01'der (SOBO) 

BEAUTIFICATIOI\ 

Hanging Flower Baskets 

(Replanted i~ November 2009) 
Flower Planter with Sign age on 
Taylor and Bay Maintained 
Street "A Day in the Life" 

Banners 

STREET MAINTENAN CE 

Street Steam Cleaning 

Graffiti Abatement 
Street Maintenance during 

SECURITY 

SFPD 108 High-Season Coverage 
Telephone & Email Communication System 

Participation on Central Station Community Advisory Board 

Conducted SFPD Community Meetings 

G RANTS 

Received S25,250 grant from Mayor's Office to support 
expansion of hanging flower basket program 

Awarded S8o,ooo two-year grant for Zero Waste from 
Department of Environment 

P/£fi ; afo 
Monthly P/ERsafe Meetings held on the first Thursday of the 

month 

Fish Net Weekly Testings with over 20 participating members 
SFFD NERT training and ce~tifications sessions held on: 

September 21, October 28, Jan uary 22, Jan uary 29 (66 

attendees) 

3rd Annual Emergency Preparedness Drill (October 16, 
2009) . 

Over 80 participants 
Scheduled as part of 20th Anniversary of Loma Pricta 

Earthquake 
Covered by local television & radio sta tions 
Participation from SFFD, SFPO, Dept. of Emergency 
Services, NERT 

Produced three PIERsafe (Partners in Emergency 

Readiness) newsletters updating the community on the 
team's efforts 

TRANSPOR TATION 

Researched, presented and rece ived approval from SFMTA 

for new short-term parking locations on the Wharf. 

Requested .and received approval for new red zone on Taylor 
Street at Jefferson to ease congestion at intersection. 

Facilitated meetings with SFMTA about new proposed 

parking meters 

Public Realm P lan 

Over the past two and one half years the Fisherman's wharf 
CBD has been working closely with the San Francisco Planning 

Department to develop improvements to the area . The public 
realm draft plan was published in June 2010 and presented to 
the Fisherman's Wharf Community. Additional Community 

Planning Workshops will take place over the summer to gain 
addi tional feedback on the draft plan. 

The plan ca lls for the redesigning of Jefferson Street and the 

Embarcadero from Aquatic Park to Pier 35 and includes designs 
for upgrades to appearance and pedestrian usability, as well as 

modifications to traffic flow. The improvements to the st reets 
and sidewalks will result in the increased safety and overall 
positive experience of pedestrians and bicycli sts, while also 
helping to alleviate the common co.mplaint of overcrowding. 

Ll Li_ 
n· 
u. CTr. 

JEFFERSON ST. {:•. 

CONCEPTUAL PLAN VIEW 

.The Jefferson Street upgrade is one of five components in the ' 

plans for Fisherman's Wharf. Other components include: 

Dynamic electronic parking signage 

Open space design 
Urban design guidelines for new development 

Streetscape lighting and landscaping 

The F\Y/CBD continues to partner with the SF Planning 

Department, The Mayor's Office, and the Port of San Francisco 

on moving the plan fo rward. The FWCBD is providing financial 
support for the Environment Impact Report (EIR) which is 

being conducted in the Fa ll of 2010. The draft plan is available 

to review on line at www.sf-plann ing.org/ftp/CDG/CDG_ 
fishermans_wharf.htm 
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Assessment Methodolog·y 
The District is funded through an annual assessment for 15 

years from the property owners for both the land-side and port· 
side boundaries of the distr ict. 

LAND-SIDE CBD PROPERTY ASSESS!\IEMT S 

For the land-side, there are fo ur property variables that are used 
in determining individual assessments. The factors are: 

1. linear fro nta ge (sidewalk frontage) 

2. land area 

3. Entire usable building square footage 

4. Building use 

There is a total of2,151,1 39 square feet in gross lot size, 28,276 . 
feet in linea r fron tage and 4,486,146 in build ing square footage. 

Three benefit zones have been created in the District for 
calculating assessments . 

Benefit Zone 1 includes roughly all parcels north of 

Bay/ North Point, between Polk and Powe ll to Jefferson. The 

formula for calculating the assessment is: 

So.091612 per square foot of lot size 
+ S 5-4296 per linear foot of lot fro ntage 

+ S 0.072168 per square foot (Building Use "A or B") or 
S 0.033368 per square foot (Building Use "C-E") or 
S.0.05 per square foot for residential "F") 

Note: See chart below for building categories. 

Example: A 5,000 square foot lot, with 50 feet of fronta ge and 
4,000 square feet of usable ret ail or commercial building use: 

5,ooox .091612 - S 458.06 in lot size 

50 x S 5.4296 "" S 27 1.48 in linear frontage, and 
4,ooox S .072168 = S 288.67 in bldg sq footage (A or B) 

Total assessment: "" $1,01 8.21 per year 

Benefit Zone 2 includes parcels wes t of Polk and east of 

Powell. Benefit Zone 2 parcels are assessed at the same rale as 
above but wilhout a buildin g factor assessment. The formula 

for calcu lating the assessment is: 

So.091612 per square foot of lot size 
+ S 5.4296 per linear foot of lot front age 

=Total Assessment 

Benefit Zone 3 includes the I L\Y/U* block bordered by Beach, 
Mason , Taylor and North Point. Parcels are assessed on the 

basis of linear frontage only. All res iden tia l parcels are assessed 

So.05 per square foot per year. The formula for calculating !he 

assessment is: 

S 5.4296 per linear foot of lot frontage (ILWU Block) - Total 

Assessment 

* The IL\Y/U is designated as Benefit Zone 3, because of its 
unique position in the dist rict and was assessed upon its four 

sides of linear front age only. 

Building Uses In Land·Side Cbd For Zone 1 

8UllOING CATEGORY 
USE CODE 

A 

c 
D 

F 

G 

Reta il space, hotels, rnolds, visito r rel.tied 

Office :ind Conimcrci:i l uses. f1cc st:inding 

p:irking structures 

Industrial/Manufacturing/Distribution 

ln stilution:il (Ci ty, County, School, public utility, pl1ks, etc.) 

Church, non·profit, tax-exempt, Jffordablc 

housing, rcnt·conlrolled l10using 

hl ulti·unit housi ng. condos , :ipl rtmcnts 

Non·fondiona l building structures, 

PORT-SIDE CBD PROPERTY ASSESSl.1ENTS 

The port-side is comprised of retail/walk-in, hotel, food and 

beverage businesses, genera l motorized land-based tour 
operators and for-pron! parking lots. These businesses are 

assessed on thei r annual gross sales as reported to the Port 
of San Francisco from the previous calendar year. This data is 

provided to the Port of San Francisco on a monthly basis and is 
public info rmation. The assessment factor appl ied to that gross 

sales figure is .0014%. 

Example: 
Gross Sales $1,000,000 x .0014 ... $1 ,400 Assessmen t 

Tour operators/tour boat vessels and related businesses (including 

large and small tour boats and sport fishing boats), are assessed 
based on the number of passengers per vessel operator or per 

horse drawn carriage company or per pedicab company. The 
assessments range from $250 to $2,000. 

2009-201 O Balance Sheet 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash 

Short Term Investments 
Total Ca.s h/ Short Term Inves tments 

Oth er Current Assets 
Accou nts Receiv:ibles Year-End 
Pre-p:i id bpenses & Insurance 

Total Current Assets 

FIX ED ASSETS 
Tota l Fixed Assets, 

net of accumubted de precia tion 

TQ7,\LASSCTS 

2009- 2010 Ca.l'l'yovei· Disburse1nent 
'09-'10 OESICNATEO PROJECTS FOR'l 0-'11 

Publ ic Real m Projects 
DIS! Special Marketing Projects 

SOBO Spcci:il St ree t Projects 
TOT.!.l CARi(':'Q\'i:!\ !J,S3URS~i\!ENT 

2010-2011 
Budgot 

CARRYOVER 

50.000 
50,ooo 

io4,360 
20.!)CO 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
LIABILITIES 

53,040 Current Li:ibilities 

234,641 Accounts P:iyable 11,665 
287,631 Accrued Expenses Year·End 5,000 

Tot:il Liabilities 16,665 

31,109 

6,935 EQUITY 
38,044 Designated Projects 204,360 

Undesign:iled 175,260 

Tot:i l Equity 379,620 

70 ,560 

3%,.::Js "i"OT,\L LlkGILm~:.;. CQt.:in ::o;s,2;;5 

July 1, 2009-June 30, 2010 (Budget vs Actual) 
REVENUE ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE %VARIANCE 
Assessmen ts-Landside 554,407 589,644 (Jp37) -6% 

Assess menls-Portside 190,924 191.J71 (447) 0% 

Progr:im Sponsorship/Gran ts 50,175 60,000 (9.8 25) ·16% 

Adv:inced Reservation Systems 826 0 826 100% 

Interest Savings/Short-Term Inves tmen t 648 0 648 100% 

Other 5,825 0 5,825 100% 

Donated Services 50,125 40,000 10,125 25% 
TOTAL RE'IENU':: 35.::,!no .iS1,ClS (23,031) .) ·;~ 

EXPENSE ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE %VARIANCE 
Sidewalk Oper:itions & Be:iutification 189,308 198,442 (9"34) -5% 
District Iden tity & Sireetscape Improvement 342,1 00 374,173 (3i,073) -9% 
Administr.:ition 165,649 174,300 (8,651) -5% 
Oon:itcd Services 50,125 40,000 10,125 25%-
TOTAL EXP!:NSES 7-17,132 :.::G.9~ S 139.733) 
:V0')-:010 INCQ!..1E ov:;:: EXi=~NS!:'.S iOS,1.::; 'JJ,lCO l1.:i.J3 

July 2010-June 201 l Budget 
INCOME LAN~lDE PORT·SIOE TOTAL 

Assessment~ 589,552 186,303 ns.855 
Sponsorships/Grant~ 54,000 28,000 821000 
T07Al lNCCM!: J57,:IS: 214.JOJ .;57,::ss 

EXPENSE LANO.SIDE PORT·SIOE TOTAL 
Sidr:w:ilk Opcrallons & Beautification 252,300 0 252,300 
District Identity & Strcctscapc Improvement 190,298 145,157 335,455 
Administration t56,740 27,660 l8~400 
Contlgcncy Reserve 65,132 20,568 85,700 
TOiAJ. ~');p;::-.:~ l.i!s-1,470 l'.lJ,J:S t:S1 ,:::~!-



San Francisco Bay 

w+, 
_'/ _./ _ _..,/// 
·1 ~-----------------~ Jefferson St. 

D.D DD D ~·~·q•ro i ______________________________________________ ! 

fEJ~D!u;J!! .. ~iD!DfCJ[D!Df~ 
r> PortsideCBD [-----------------:~~~ D DNorthPointSL D [-----------------: [------------------------------------: 

Risherimam's W.marf GBEl 
·------------------------------------------------------· ' ' 

~~-~:~~~~~i-~~-:~-~~-~:i.~~-~~~-t-~~-~-j~~~~~-------1 

L. .......... ..... l !_~~ '"'1't. [. ____ ______ __ ___ _j [_ ____ ____ __ ____________________ ___ __ ; 

r::::=:~~J ~:.: ________ __] r::::'.~~::!:---::i p _______ J ::::::::::::::::::! 
Francisco St. 

~c2.0 1 Leave nworth Strl;'el:, ' 'ui l:e l~-16 San Fr.:inci_sco , CA 94133 

4-15 ,673.3530 I 415.673.2527 J info@vi sitfisherrnanswh8.rf. com 

www.visitfish n11.:1n. wharl:com 





A1Jgust 2011 

Wine 20.10-2011 fis.cal y,ear saw the comtinuecl gro.wtJ;i and sl!lccess of eur 0rganization. Now in its sixtlil year of operation the 

Fishermari's :VV.har<f eomrnumity Benefit District (FWCBE>) has built very preducti)le relatrionslilips with cit¥ agencies ancl ether 

meighhlorJ;ieed grieugs. We have inoreased our numl:Jer of Bearcl of 15lirectors te 25 memhlers strong amd eur 11.4 committees imdude the 

Ji>ar;ticipati0ri 0f eyer 150 district amcl community members each moliltffi. We wewlcl like to thalilk our volulilteer beard ef clir.ectors as 

well as all of indiv.i<i!l!lals that support our district throughout th.e year. 

We are 1'1aRPY to report that the Public Realm Plan for Fisherman's Wharf has centinwecl to gain botb momemtum and support. The 

plan has receivecl wide supp0rt, not only from the C0mmur.iity, but also from Mayor Ed Lee and the May,or's Gffice of Economic and 

Werkplace Develepmerit, Supervisor David (hiu, tJ;ie San Franoisce Plar:iniAg GeP>afl:ment, the Pert of Sa A Francisco, SPUR ancl the Bay 

if rail Project. The FWCBD has shared iri the funcling of the environment Rev.iew P~ecess (.EJR) through a 00llaborative partnership with 

tJ;ie SF PlammiAg Department, lime Pert of San Francisco and the Mayer's Office. lihe PrelimiAarv Mitiga.ted Negative DeclaratioA was 

successfully completed ira May of this year which is a major milestone for the plan. Our formal request to complete the pwjeGt prior to 

the Amer.ica's Cup J;ias defimitely rrnoved the process ahead quicker. However, we clo mo..t have cenfirrrnatfon on the eonst~uetieA funciing 

or if the project comstruction can be aecelerated to l:Je completed prior to the America's C1:1p. 

Special Events conti1>1l!le to d~ive significant numbers of visitors to Fisherman's Whar.f'. Fleet Week :ZO:LO was tine mest successful we 

have seen in years, and Fleet Week 2011 is expected to be even better. With the anrieuncement of the 2013 Ameriea's Cup Race 

comimg to San Franci,sco, tine FWGBD has already l:Jeen working closely witln the May.<;ir's Office and the SFMTA to ensure the Wharf is 

part of the planning priocess for this very exciting event. We are cenvi1>1ced that the preP>arations amd plans for welceming the America's 

Cup to the waterfront will benefit FishermaA's Wharf well beyoncl the race itself throwgffi permaner;it changes to transportatieA and 

event managerrnent t1'1at cam be applied thrnl!lghout the year. 

Our accomplishrrnents are inclucled in this annual report but here arie a few highlights: 

0 Adclecl a new ambassacior program that will help welcome our v.isitors to Hie district ancl ensure their exp.erieAce is as p.esitive as 

possible. 

Created a safe amd more welceming corridor on Taylor Street from the cable Car 1urnareulild to Jef.ferson Street by permanently 

ligffitimg of a II the trees. 

0 Partnerecl with the City of San Francisco to suppert aAether successful 4th oJ J.ulv Celebrati0m on Fisherman's Wharf. 

Supported the City ef Sari Fraricisco on tlile Sunday Streets program and had the event end with a Family Fitriess Fair in the heart of 

Fisherman's Wharf. 

Conducted the Fourth Annual PIERsafe Emergency Preparedness Drill on the Pier 45 which included strong meclia 00verage. 

Su,pported tine most successfotl Fleet Week Sa1>1 f!rancise0, to date, through a Maj.or Sj:'J0nsorslilip fer Fisherma1>1's Wharf that 

delivered ,hundreds of thousands of visitors to the Wharf. 

Began implementation of an $80,000 two-year Zero Waste grant secu~ed tlilro.ugh the D.epartment of the Environment to cleclare 

Fisherman's Wharf a Zero Waste Zone. 

lmprovecl the Joseph Conrad Square park for visitors and residents thrnugh an organized effort with the SFPD, local businesses and 

the Recreation and Parks Departme1>1t. We added lights to all the trees in the park wJ;iich has created a much safer and a more 

beautiful night time expe.rience. 

We encourage you to read about the accomplishments of the CBD included in this annual report. If ye.u are not already involve cl w.ith 

the organization we would ask that you consider joining one of our committees where you can make a difference. 

Regards, 

~~ 
David Ber(Jey 

President 

#. 4, /J ~& 1 Lt1t-r.,,.//;/1 C./.-:lc.0 .... 
Kevin Carroll 

Executive Directo.r 

. '. 



District Identity and Street improvements (DIS!) : Marketing 

Provided event sponsorship for the 2010 Fourth of 

July Celebration as well as special offers for visitors, a 

web site build-out and the production of a event flyer 

distributed to local businesses and hotels. 

Sponsored the 2010 Salmon Aid event at the Aquarium 

of the Bay. 

For Fleet Week 2010 the FWCBD provided major 

sponsorship to include print and broadcast media. The 

district participated in a Fleet Week guide with special 

offers for military personnel and visitors. The FWCBD 

also staffed an information booth at the corner of 

Jefferson and Taylor Streets. 

Production of the Holiday Lights & Sights boat parade 

with over 40 boats from the Fishing Fleet, St. Francis 

Yacht Club, SF Fire and Police Departments, PIER 39 

harbor and Blue & Gold Fleet. Advertising on F-Line 

Historic Trolley Cars. Lighted decorations on the world 

famous "Crab Wheel". The event was covered by the 

Chronicle and the Examiner. 

Coverage by KCBS and the San Francisco Chronicle for 

the 4th Annual PIERsafe drill. 

Website: The official Fisherman's Wharf website, 

www.visitfishermanswharf.com experienced a decline 

from July-September with a drop of 19% of unique 

visitors. With a revamped search engine optimization 

program in place from October through December, 

unique visitors again increased over the previous year by 

7.5%. Since the start of the website in July, 2007 unique 

visitors have grown over 105%. 

To meet the demands of an ever evolving web and smart 

phone environment, work began in June to revamp 

visitfishermanswharf.com into a content management 

system that is fully integrated with news biogs and social 

media sites which will launch in August of 2011. . 

Social media: Facebook followers has increased 23% 

from July to December and the amount of unique users 

who have engaged, viewed or ·consumed content from 

the Fisherman's Wharf page more than quadrupled in 

the months of November and December. The amount 

of followers increased from 1826 at the end of June 

2010 to 2857 by the end of June 2011 . Monthly totals 

of unique users who engaged the Fisherman's Wharf 

Facebook page went from an average of 250 per month 

to over 5000 by the end of the fiscal year. 
0 Redesigned and improved the Fisherman's Wharf 

Brochure with a better map, directions and instructions 

on where to find additional information on the internet. 

500,000 copies were printed for the next two years and 

are distributed by Certified Folder and by direct requests 

that come into the FWCBD Office. 

Fisherman's Wharf was the innagural site for the 2011 

Sunday Streets events throughout the city. The FWCBD 

were featured in the City Hall press conference and 

received print and on line media coverage. The FWCBD 

also organized and spnosored a Family Fitness Fair in the 

parking lot at Jefferson and Mason that included games 

and activities for participating families. 



Street Operations, Beautification and Order (SOBO) 

1q~ 1\ll 111 IU\rlUN 

Expanded to 67 Flower Baskets (Replanted in October 

2010) of which 40 were funded by a grant from the 

Mayor's Office. 

Lighted the trees at Conrad Park during the holidays 

which not only beautified the park but also helped 

prevent crime and loitering. 

Fixing electrical boxes & permanently lighting the 

trees along Taylor Street from Jefferson Street to Bay 

Street. 

Lighted the Crab Wheel at Jefferson & Taylor for the 

holiday season: 

'.l rru L I Mi\INT El\l/\N( I 

0 Sidewalk Steam Cleaning. 
0 Graffiti Abatement. 

Partnered with DPW on · the " Clean Sweep" of the 

wharf in July of 2010. 

Contract with CMSC to provide a person (s) to collect 

litter from the sidewalks . Coverage is seven days a 

week and 12 hours per day from May to October. 

'> I ( lJl{l 1-Y 

Expanded the existing SFPD lOB coverage to seven 

days a weel~ up to Fleet Week (early October). From 

July to October our lOB officers issued over 113 

citations and made over 30 arrests. 

Participated on Central Station Community Advisory 

Group. 

0 Held bi-monthly SFPD Community Meetings . 

Provided cell phones to the two regularly scheduled 

SFPD beat officers to allow the FWCBD to easily 

contact them with issues that arise. 

0 In 2011 the FWCBD contracted with Service Group 

Incorporated and hired one full time and one 

part time Visitor Ambassador. These year round 

ambassadors not only assist visitors with directions 

a nd questions, but as lo aid law enforcement, the Port 

of San Francisco and the homeless at the wharf. 

i'l f'I{',. if I' 

Monthly PIERsafe Meetings held on the first 

Wednesday of the month . 

Weekly tests of the Fish Net radio network that 

include s over 20 participating members . 

SFFD NERT training and certifications sessions held 

on September 17 & 24, 2010 and Feruary 25 & March 

4th. (over 160 attendees) 

0 The 4th Annual Emergency Preparedness Drill held on 

October 15, 2010 had over 50 participants and was 

covered by local television & radio stations. 

Produced and distributed two PIERsafe (Partners 

in Emergency Readiness) newsletters updating the 

community on the team's efforts. 

I IV\f\J',P CJHT/\T IUf\J IJ\~Kl- Ol<LE 

Worked with Supervisor David Chiu's office and the 

MTA on new tour bus legislation. 

Committee met to continue work on congestion 

related to tour buses and the lack of long-term 

parking a I tern atives. 

Presented district's concern to the MTA Board about 

lack of outreach to the Fisherman 's Wharf Community 

on the MTA's proposa l to expand parking meter hours. 

\ lJ '>TA I NJ\ LI! I I I Y ( < > M 1V1 I I I U: 

Secured an $80,000 two-year grant from the 

Department of Environment to implement a zero 

waste program on the wharf. 

< OMIVIUf\JI I"( DEVFLOl'M[f\I I COMM ! ITU 

Held two seperate workshops that focused on 

sustainable seafood practices for restaurant s and how 

to become a zero waste business 



Public Realm Plan 

Over the past three years the Fisherman's Wharf CBD has been 

working closely with the San Francisco Planning Department 

to explore improvements to the area. The public realm plans 

outlined in the Fisherman's Wharf CBD Vision Plan have 

continued to gain momentum and support. Several Community 

Planning Workshops were held to help shape the program. 

Consensus was gained on the six key elements of the plan 

including: 

Pedestrian friendly streets and sidewalks 

Safe routes for bicycles 
0 Good for commerce 

Works well with transit 

Eases traffic congestion 

Facilitates Parking 

The plan calls for the redesigning of Jefferson Street and the 

Embarcadero from Aquatic Park to Pier 35 and includes designs 

for upgrades to appearance and pedestrian usability, as well as 

JEFFERSON ST. 
CONCEPTUAL PLAN VIEW 

-- ··-· ----- ---~-------·- - ...., ___ -
1);1.':t 

• 1'-l~~~:·::·~~t,1Y:~:fi1 ; __:l•l!·J tsl( i!{!Rfr"·~ -:, ;: 

modifications to traffic flow. Specific improvements proposed 

involve the widening of sidewalks, creating much-needed bicycle 

lanes, and providing uncomplicated instruction and access to 

parking facilities. 

The improvements to the streets and sidewa lks will result in the 

increased safety and overa ll positive experience of pedestrians 

and bicyclists, while also helping to alleviate the common 

complaint of overcrowding. 

The Jefferson Street upgrade is one of five components in the 

plans for Fisherman's Wharf. Other components include: 

Dynamic electronic parking signage 

Open space design 

Urban design guidelines for new development 

Streetscape lighting and landscaping 

The FWCBD has shared in the financing of both the Mitigated 

Negative Declaration and the construction drawings for the 

Public Realm Plan. 

ii 
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I 
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Assessme fl1 t Methodology 

The District is funded through an annual assessment for 15 years 

from the property owners for both the land-side and port-side 

boundaries of the district. 

L/\ f\j u .•,1 [)[ r.nu l1 IWPU\ I y A';'i L •;sfVJ r: NI•, 

For the land-side, there are four property variables that are used 

in determining individual assessments. The factors are: 

1. Linear frontage (sidewalk frontage) 

2. Land area 

3. Entire usable building square footage 

4. Building use 

There is a total of 2,151,139 square feet in gross lot size, 28,276 

feet in linear frontage and 4,486,146 in building square footage . 

Three benefit zones have been created in the District for 

calculating assessments. 

Benefit Zone 1 includes roughly all parcels north of 

Bay/North Point, between Polk and Powell to Jefferson. The 

formula for calculating the assessment is: 

$0.091612 per square foot of lot size 

+ $ 5.4296 per linear foot of lot frontage 

+ $ 0.072168 per square foot (Building Use "A or B") or 

$ 0.033368 per square foot (Building Use "C-E") or 

$.0.05 per square foot for residential "F") 

Note: See chart below for building categories. 

Example: A 5,000 square foot lot, with 50 feet of frontage and 

4,000 square feet of usable retail or commercial building use: 

5,000 x .091612 $ 458.06 in lot size 

50 x $ 5.4296 = $ 271.48 in linear frontage, and 

4,000 x $ .072168 = $ 288.67 in bldg sq footage (A or B) 

Total assessment: = $1,018.21 per year 

Benefit ?one 2 includes parcels west of Polk and east of Powell . 

Benefit Zone 2 parcels are assessed at the same rate as above 

but without a building factor assessment. The formula for 

calculating the assessment is: 

$0.091612 per square foot of lot size 

+ $ 5.4296 per linear foot of lot frontage 

=Total Assessment 

Benefit Zone 3 includes the ILWU* block bordered by Beach, 

Mason, Taylor and North Point. Parcels are assessed on the 

basis of linear frontage only. All residential parcels are assessed 

$0.05 per square foot per year. The formula for calculating the 

assessment is: 

$ 5.4296 per linear foot of lot frontage (ILWU Block) =Total 

Assessment 

* The ILWU is designated as Benefit Zone 3, because of its 

unique position in the district and was assessed upon its four 

sides of linear frontage only. 

Building Uses In Land-Side Cbd For Zone 1 

BUILDING 
USE CODE 

A 

B 

c 
D 

E 

G 

CATEGORY 

Retail space, hotels, motels, visitor related 

Office and Commercial uses, free standing 

parking structures 

Ind u stria I/Man ufa ctu ri ng/D istri bu tio n 

Institutional (City, County, School, public utility, parks, etc.) 

Church, non-profit, tax-exempt, affordable 

housin g, rent-controlled housing 

Multi-unit housing, condos, apartments 

Non-functional building structures, 

[>()!( 1-:; 1uE CDD P I WPl-:1~ rv /\SSCSSfVll:NTS 

The port-side is comprised of retail/walk- in, hotel, food and 

beverage businesses, general motorized land-based tour 

operators and for-profit parking lots. These businesses are 

assessed on their annual gross sales as reported to the Port 

of San Francisco from the previous calendar year. Th is data is 

provided to the Port of San Francisco on a monthly basis and is 

public information. The assessment factor applied to that gross 

sales figure is .0014%. 

Example: 

Gross Sales $1,000,000 x .0014 = $1,400 Assessment 

Tour operators/tour boat vessels and related businesses (includ ing 

large and small tour boats and sport fishing boats), are assessed 

based on the number of passengers per vessel operator or per 

horse drawn carriage company or per pedicab company. The 

assessments range from $250 to $2,000. 



2010-2011 Balance Sheet July 1, 2010-June 30, 2011 (Budget vs Actual) 

ASSETS REVENUE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE %VARIANCE 

CURRENT ASSETS Carry over from fiscal year 09/10 229,610 229,610 0 0% 

Cash 147,003 Assessments-Land side 586,608 589,551 (2,943) 0% 

Savings & Short Term Investments 101,991 Assessments-Portside 184,403 186,303 (1,900) -1% 

Total Cash/Short Term Investments 248,994 Program Sponsorship/Grants 55,000 56,750 (1,750) -3% 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Miscellaneous 850 0 850 100% 

Accounts Receivables Year-End 15,285 Interest Savings/Short-Term Investment 1,818 0 1,818 100% 

Grants Receivable 40,000 Donated Services 43,713 40,000 3,713 9% 

Total Accounts Receivable 55,285 fOTAL REVENUE 1,102,00Z l , l02,2Jtl (21Z) 0% 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS EXPENSE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE %VARIANCE 
Accounts Receivables Year-End 107,905 Sidewalk Operations & Beautification 251,251 252,300 (1,049) 0% 
Prepaid Expenses & Insurance 7,159 District Identity & Streetscape Improvement 275,058 335,455 (60,397) -18% 

Total Other Current Assets 115,064 Administration 185,315 184,399 (916) 0% 
FIXED ASSETS Donated Services 43,713 40,000 3,713 9% 
Total fixed assets net of accumulated TOTAL EXPENSES 755,337 812,154 {56,817) -7% 
depreciation 63,471 

TOTi\L ASSETS 482,814 DESIGN/ITED PROJECTS 131,529 229,610 (98,081) -43% 

CONTINGENCY RESEllVE 85, 700 85,700 0 0 
LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2010-2011 RF.VEN UE ovrn EXPENSES 129,436 0 129,436 100% 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payab le 44,277 July 2011- June 2012 Budget 
Accrued Expenses Year-End 13,490 

REVENUE LAND-SIDE PORT-SIDE TOTAL 
Total liabilities 57,767 

Carry over from fiscal year 2010-2011 156,000 50,000 206,000 
EQUITY 

Assessments 589,600 186,300 775,900 
Total Equity 425,047 

Sponsorship/Grants 47,000 28,000 75,000 
TQTAL Ul\BIU rlFS Rt EQU ITY '\32,814 

Donated Services 34,000 6,000 40,000 

TOT;\L REVF. NUE 326,000 270,300 1,096,900 

2010-11 Carryover Disbursement 
EXPENSE LAND-SIDE PORT-SIDE TOTAL 

'10-'11 DESIGNATED PROJECTS FOR'll-'12 CARRYOVER 
Sidewalk Operations & Beautification 277,800 0 277,800 

Public Realm Projects 106,000 
District Identity & Streetscape Improvement 163,422 137,778 301,200 

DISI Special Marketing Projects 50,000 
Administration 131,778 54,422 186,200 

SOBO Special Street Projects 50,000 
Donated Services 34,000 6,000 40,000 

TOTAL CAHH\'OVEH DISBUr\SEMENT 206,000 
TO rAL EXP~NSES 607,000 198,200 805,2.0fJ 

Designated Projects 156,000 50,000 206,000 

Contingency Reserve 63,600 22,100 85,700 

2010-2011 2011-2012 
Budget Budget 
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The i.011~2012 fisC31 year.saw the coritinued grow!h and success 'Of our or .... gaolzation. rNow ifl its seventh year'Of operition the 
Flsl\erman's WharfJ;ommunitY'Benefit pistript (FWCBE>) has buJlt vei';y1producpve relationships with city agenci.es•and other 

nei~hboillgpd ,groups. With a 25 member!B.o;ird oflDireo\ors arid !O[q>mmittees an.d s_ubc9mmittees,1We have ov,er ~so aotil(e dlst<ict 
ani;l 1communi!i'f11nembe·rs. Wew1ou1Cl lli1$e 1to~h.arlk Our vplunteerlboard df aire~prs asiweJI as··a11 (6f the. iiidividuatS1Jhclt supjjOrt .. our 
"distf[at throughout the ;year. .1 

We~ar.e h_appy to1reportttflat1the Public1Re<illTi fPlan for lFiShel'fuari'.S 1Wharf has rcontiti~ed to gain lboth m0rfle1itum ·and 'Suppaf.t.~he 

plan llfas r~ceived wide support, n~only 'frqm ,th~ comfnuni).y, b_ut also from Mayor'Ejl1Lee and the,J\liayoi'-'s Office of,Economic and 

Workplafe Development, ~upervisor David ,Chiu, the·San lfrancisco Planning Depa_rtment, the rPort of San Fr,mclsco, 5RUR 'and the 
Bay Trail Proje-~ ifhe FWCBE> has shared in the funging of the1Ei\virorimei\t lRevie\v Pr.ocess (EIR) through il collaborativefpa[tner>hip 

with the'5F r Pr~nning 1Departmen't, the Port of San Fran~iSc9 arid thelMayor's Office. The Preliminar;y Mitigat~d lJ!legaftve Declaration 
was ljna'liz_ed in 7\ugust of to11,which w_as a majorimilestone for th~'j)lan. 1With fundiilg 'i!nd s.ofnmunity outreaCh ·ana in(offiiafi.o_n 

gather.ell, the pr.ofect is breaking ground in the fall of~012. 

~pedal Ev'~Ots· continug t..o drive significant numbgrs of Vi~ito~ .to Fisflerrna_n's\Wharf. Fleet1Week 2J)11 was extremely succesSful, 

becomjngthe laJgest Fleet W,eek1iQ NarihrAmerica. We ~ re c613vinced that t~e 1prepa.@tions and plans (or w,elcorfling fh_e Arfler.lca'S1tup 
to the ~vaterfront will beneffi~ Fisherman's Wharf w~ll be.v~ond th.e ra._ce li!self throu·gh permanent cha_nges t'.O tran-sportatfon and event 

m~QagEfn::ient thatean 1be appliea throughout\the1y,ear 

C!Jur accomplishments are included in this annual 1 rep.~rt 1 butlhereiarera few lhighlights: 

Oui'1newLambassad9r1program'ha.s b,?en successful in1welcOlilihg visjtgrs rand as_sisfing them, af1c!_also for rnakilJ.C the1wharf safer 

-and rcleaner. 

We have helped support resta.urantS within the dlstri~t by working1hard to keep mdbile food carts from gaining authorization to 
operate here. 

WorJ!e_q with the Rort of San lirancisco, the SJ Planning Deeartment and ~upervisor Chlu's offic)Ho clarify and amm~nd ioning 

issues in the.district. 
Create.9 a.safe and more welcoming corridor o_n Taylor Street from the Cable'':Cn Turnar9un._d toJefferson!Street by per.manentl~ 
li~hting of all th~ trees. 
Par$nefe9 With the City of San Francisco to support aiio'tljer succeSsful 4th df July ::C:e lebratl_on on FiSfierman;S Whaff. 
S_upp,orte!f the City of San,franci§co's Sunday Stree.ts ,program lb¥1holding a Family'fitn·ess fair in the lleart of Fisherman's Wharf. 

Prgpucejl thelfifth1Annyal PIER.safe rEm~rgencylRreparce!l.ness !!J rill on Pier 45 which indude.d strong media,c9verage and was shot 
by a film scho_ol stu.9enJs for a suOseqy:en,!:lpubJic service ann'O,unce menhvideo. 

Su,pportea the1most.su-caess'(til Fleet .Week San FraocisCq,1toitJate., tthrough a1major sp~nsorship 'f.or l f.jshe 11man's Wharf1that 

_rJ.eliveri?d .hundreds tof thousands,of visitors to the1Wharf. 

.Contin.ue-a implementation of an $80;000,.two·,ye.a r Z?ro •Waste grant secured1through 'the LDep;i!tl]l?nt of the1Environfl)ent1to 
de~l~re 'Fistlerman's \Whaff ·~ Zero Wa'ste Zone. 

!mprqved th~Joseph Con@d Square 1park fo'r visitors· and residents· through ao organi!:e9 e'ffprt1with the SF.PD, lo'cal busif'less_es· and 

the 1Recreati_6n an.9 Parks Elepartment. 
©ff,gred a·series of fl:._e'e workshops ab_out systain~Pil_ity, c..zero waste ~n·d .soclalimedia fpr district businesses _and property owner_s. 

Laun~heJ! a new visitfishermanswharf,com w.eb.s.ite that Includes social media integrapon and allows FWCBD staff to fully edit the 

we~si!e. 

~e encot}~ge you1to r.._ead ~bout the acc9mpl~s.hrii~nts.pfth~ cBp incLude_d_in this annual report. lf 1you ~are not'31re.?0Y inyolved with 

.the ,o'rganizatipn ~we would ask thatypu consld_er joini~g one of our cmmmltteeslVJhere ;vou can make a difference. 

Re.car,Cts, 

·- .. · .. :,; J i/i'/1.l) ~§;~.~~~~~i· 
David !Ber.bey """"' 'iJ'roy~campbell 

Pr.esiaent Exec_u.!\ve Oire_ctor 

District Identity and Street Improvements (DISI) : Marketing 

Provided event sponsorship for the 2011 Fourth of 

July Celebration as well as a web site build-out and 

the production of an event flyer distributed to local 

businesses and hotels . 

Sponsored the 2011 Salmon Aid event at the Aquarium 

of the Bay, The Bay lnstitute's Annual Gala and 

The Telegraph Hill Neighborhood Center's Annual 

Fundraising Dinner. 

.For Fleet Week 2011, the FWCBD provided major 

sponsorship to include print and broadcast media. The 

district participated in a Fleet Week guide with special 

offers for military personnel and visitors. The FWCBD 

also produced a event listing for the weektong of events 

that was distributed to businesses and hotels. 

Production of the Holiday lights & Sights boat parade 

with over 40 boats from the Fishing Fleet, St. Francis 

Yacht Club, SF Fire and Police Departments, PIER 39 

Harbor and Blue & Gold Fleet. The event was covered 

by over 20 major news markets and and seen by over 

500,000 people. 

Lighted the world famous "Crab Wheel" for the holidays. 

Coverage by KCBS and the San Francisco Chronicle for 

the 5th Annual PIERsafe drill. 
Website: The official Fisherman's Wharf website, 

www.visitfishermanswharf.com, was redesigned and 

launched in early December 2011. The new site can be 

managed directly by the FWCBD staff, is fu lly integrated 

with smart phones and Facebook and has a news blog 

people can subsribe to. The website was visited by 

over 210,000 people which was an increase from the 

previous fiscal year by 16%. 

Social media : Facebook followe rs has increased 32% 

from the prvious year in regards to the amount of users 

who have engaged, viewed or consumed content from 

the Fisherman's Wharf page. 

Fisherman's Wharf was the innagural site for the 2012 

Sunday Streets events throughout the city. The FWCBD 
was featured in the City Hall press conference and 

received print and on line media coverage: The FWCBD 

also organized and sponsored a Family Fun Fair in the 

parking lot at Jefferson and Mason that included ga mes 

and activ ities for participating families. 

The FWCBO continued its partnership with SF Travel a 

Chaperon by running ads in their publications and on 

the SF Travel website. 



Street Operations, Beautification and Ord er (5080} 

BEAU TiFICATIO rl 

Expanded to 75 Flower Baskets (Replanted in October 

2011 and June 2012). 

Maintained the lighted trees a long Taylor Street from 

Jefferson Street to Bay Street. 

lighted the Crab Wheel at Jefferson & Taylor for the 

holiday season. 

STREET fl/lAJfl!TC/\! .~f\!CE 
Sidewalk Steam Clean ing. 

Ongoing Graffiti Abatement. 

Contract w!th CMSC to provide liter collection and 

October 14, 2011 had over 50 participants and was 

covered by loca l television & radio stations. 

Printed "Essential Contact Numbers" wallet cards that 

were distributed in the district which also contained 

information about emerg~ncy preparedness. 

TP . .A.~ ! S~OR T.~.TI Oi l T.i::.sr<F •JF.:r: 

Worked with the MTA supported expansion of the 

F-Line service to the wharf. 

Committee met to continue work on congestion 

rel ated to tour buses, short term parking solut!ons 

and the lack of long·term parking alternatives. · 

cleaning services seven days a week and 12 hours per SUST.0.!NABILJT/ CO r.,.lMIT TE~ 

day from May to October. • Continued work on the $80,000 two.year grant from 

SECURITY the Department of Em:.ironment to implement a zero 

Expanded the existing SFPD 108 coverage to seven waste program on the wha rf. 

days a week up to Fleet Week (early October} . From • Created a Zero Waste Business Recognition Program 

July to October our 108 officers issued over 160 for Fisherman's Wharf to recognize those businesses 

citations and made over 20 arrests. 

Participated on the Central Station's Community 

Police Advisory Board. 

Held bi-monthly SFPD Community Meetings. 

Actively worked with SFPO to curtail ag ress ive 

panhandling and chronic beh~vio ral issues in the 

district. 
Provided cell phones to the two regularly scheduled 

SFPD beat officers to allow the FWCBD to easily 

contact them with iss ues that arise. 

In July 2012 the FWCBD contracted with Service 

Group Incorporated and hired one full time and one 

part time Visitor Ambassador. These yea r round 

ambassadors not only ass ist visitors with directions 

and questions, but also aid law enforcement, the Port 

of San Francisco and the homeless at the wharf. 

PlE Rsafe 

Monthly PIERsafe Meetings held on the first 

Wednesday of the month. 

Weekly tests of the FishNet radio network that 

includes over 15 participating members. 

SFFO NERT training and certifications sessions held in 

September 2011 and April 2012 (over 160 attendees) . 

Th e 5th Annual Emergency Preparedness Drill held on 

recycling 90% or more of their waste. 

COMMUl·llT'i DEV ELOPMEM T COMMITTEE 

Partnered with the Academy of Art University and 

their landscape Design program to cre ate ideas and 

conceptUa! drawings for a redesigned Conrad Park. 

--

' I ,, 

Public Realm Plan 

Since 2006 the Fisherman's Wharf CBO has been working 

closely with the San Francisco Planning Department to explore 

improv.ements to the area. The public realm plans outlined 

in the .Fisherman's Wharf CBO Vision Plan have continued to 

gain momentum and support. Several Community Planning 

Workshops were held to help shape the program. Consensus 

was gained on the six key elements of the plan including: 

Pedestrian friendly streets <lnd sidew<l lks 

Safe routes far bicycles 

Good for commerce 

In January of 2012, the CBO worked with the San Francisco 

Planning Department and ROMA design to produce two 

community meetings that were a):tended by over 100 people 

from the Fisherman's Wharf community. Speakers included 

Supervisor David Chiu, Boris Dramov from ROMA Design and Ne11 

Hrushowy from San Francisco Planning. 

In May of 2012, the CBD again partnered with the San Francisco 

Planning Department and DPW to hold another community 

meeting at the Bay Theater at PIER 39. 

Works 1,Vell with transit The FWCBD continues its committment to perform outreach 

Eases traffic congestion and will continue to work with The Department of Public Works, 

Facilitates Parking Pacific Gas & Electric and thd San Francisco Planning Department 

to make sure the community is keep abreast and informed an all 

The plan calls for the redesigning of Jefferson Street and the aspects of construction as the project continues on its forward 

Embarcadero from Aquatic Park to Pier 35 and includes designs · trajectory. 

for upgrades to appearance and pedestrian usability, as well as 

modifications to traffic now. Specific improvements proposed 

involve the widening of sidewalks, creating much·needed bicycle 

lanes, and providing uncomplicated instruction and access to 

parking facilities. 

The improvements to the streets and sidewalks will result in the 

increased safety and overall positive experience of pedestrians 

and bicyclists, while also helping to alleviate the common 

complaint of overcrowding. 

The Jefferson Street upgrade is one of five components in the 

plans for Fisherman's Wharf. Other components include: 

Dynamic electronic parking signage 

Open space design 

Urban design guidelines for new development 

Streetscape lighting and landscaping 

The FWCBD has shared in the Hnancing of both the Mitigated 

Negative Declaration and the construction drawings for the 

Public Realm Plan. In late 2011, the FWCBD contracted with 

ROMA Design to complete the detailed design plans for Jefferson 

Street. 



Assessme nt Meth odo logy 
The District is funded through an annual assessment for 15 Benefit Zone 3 includes the ILWU• jl!ock bordered by Beach, 

years from the property owners for both the land-side and port- Mason, Taylor and North Point. Parcels are assessed on the 

side boundaries of the district. The FWCBD Board of Directors basis of linear frontage only. All residential pa'rcels are assessed 

incresed the landside Assessments by the CPI of 2.9% for the $0.05 per squa re foot per year. The formula for calculating the 

2012-2013 fiscal year. assessment is: 

LAND-S IDE CBD Pf;OPEf\Tl' '1SSESSl•:!E i"TS $5.4296perlinearfootoflotfrontage(ILWU Block)=Total 

F~r the land-side, there are four property variables that are used Assessment 

in determining individual assessments. The factors are: ' The ILWU is designated as Benefit Zone 3, because of its 

1. linear frontage (sidewalk frontage) unique position in the district and was assessed upon its four 

2. Land area sides of linear frontage only. . 
3. Entire usable building square footage 

4. Building use 

There is a total of 2,lSl,139 square feet in gross lot siz.e, 28,276 

feet in linear frontage and 4,486,146 in building square footage. 

Three benefit zones have been created in the District for 

calculating assessments. 

Benefit Zone 1 includes roughly all parcels north of 

Bay/North Point, between Polk and Powell to Jeffer~on. The 

formula for calculating the assessment is: 

$0.091612 per square foot of lot siz.e 

+ S S.4296 per linear foot of lot frontage 

+ $ 0.072168 per square foot (Building Use "A or B") or 

$ 0.033368 per square foot (Building Use "C-E") or 

$.0.0S per square foot for residential "F") 

Note: See chart below for building categories. 

Example: A S,000 square foot lot, with SO feet of frontage and 

4,000 square feet of usable retail or commercial building use: 

5,000 x .091612 = $ 458.06 in lot size 

SO x $ 5.4296 = $ 271.48 in li near frontage, and 

4,000 x $ .072168 = $ 288.67 in bldg sq footage (A or BJ 

Total assessment: ; $1,018.21 per year 

Benefit Zone 2 includes parcels west of Polk and east of Powell. 

Benefit Zone 2 parcels are assessed at the same ~teas above 

but without a building factor assessment. The formula for 

calculating the assessment is: 

$0.091612 per square foot of lot size 

+ $ 5.4296 per linear foot of lot frontage 

=Total Assessment 

Building Uses In Land-Side Cbd For Zone 1 

BUILDlilG 
USE: CODE 

CATEGORY 

Ret<lil space, ho tels, motels, visitor related 

Office and Commercial uses, free standin& 

parking structures 

I ndustrial/M;rnu f;ic turi ng/Ois tribu ti on 

lnstitution<JI (City, County, School, public utili ty, parks, etc.) 

Church, non· profit, l.<JK·mi:empt, affordable 

housing, rcnt·controllcd housing 

Multi·unit housini::. condos, apartments 

Non-function.ii building structures, 

PORT-S IDE CBD PROPEP,TY ASS tS SivlENTS 

The port-side is comprised of retail/walk-in, hotel, food and 

beverage businesses, general motorized land-based tour 

operators and for-profit parking lots. These businesses are 

assessed on their annual gross sales as reported to the Port 

of San Francisco from the previous calendar year. This data is 

provided to the Port of San Francisco on a monthly basis and is 

public information. The assessment factor applied to that gross 

sales figure is .0014%. 

Example: 

Gross Sales $1,000,000 x .0014 = $1,400 Assessment 

Tour operators/tour boat vessels and related businesses (including 

large and small tour boats and sport fishing boats), are assessed 

based on the number of passengers per vessel operator or per 

horse drawn carriage company or per pedicab company. The 

assessments range from $2SO to $2,000. 

2011 - 2012 Ba lance Sheet 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash S2,383 

S.lvings & Short form lnv.:>Uments 282,184 

Total cash/Short Term Investments 334,567 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accou11ts Receivables Year-End 73,334 

Grants Receivab le 32,260 

Tota l Accounts Rccclvablc 105,594 

OTHER·CURRENT ASSETS 

Prepaid Expcmes & Insurance 11,115 

Total Other Current Assets 11,llS 

FIXED ASSETS 

Tot;il fi1Ced a~cl.s. net of ;iccumutatcd 

depreciation 56,555 

TU'f.l.l :USCTS ::07,a; 1 

UAOIUTIES & EQUITY 
LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 22,218 

Accrued Expenses Year· End 8,112 

Total Uab1!1tles 30,33~ 

EQUITY 

Tola\ Equity 477,501 

10T.e.L Ll.""!,~IUTJES !!. £QUITY S0 7,S3l 

2011-12 Carryover Disbursement 

' ll-'12 OESIG/IATED PROJECTS FOR '12-'ll CARR)'QVER 

Public Realm Projects 50,000 

DIS! Spe~ial Marketing Projects 127,000 

SOSO Special Street Projects 127,000 

rn-r,u CllP.R'fD\•rn DIS6URS'::l\1EN1 3.0•l,00 

2011-2012 

July 1, 2011-June 30, 2012 (Budget vs Actual) 

REVENUE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE %VARIANCE 

Carry over from fiscal year 11/12 206,000 206,000 0 0% 

Assessments-L;mdside 565,564 589,600 {24,036) -4% 
Assessments-Po rt.side 187,464 186,300 ll,164) 1% 

Program Sponsorship/Grants 0 75,000 {75,0001 -100~~-

Indivi dual/Business Contribution 7,500 0 7,SOO 100 

Interest Savings/Short·Te rrn Investment 2,195 0 2,195 100'>~ 

Donated Services 39.225 40,000 1775) -2% 

TOTAL R~'/ ·_ ;-..iu:. l.VC7,:!4~ l.:J'./G,20G (33.':lS2: .(1) , 

EXPENSE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE %VARIANCE 

Sidewalk Operations & Se;:iutification 268.474 277,800 {9,326) -3% 

District Identity & Streetsc<Jµe Improvement 267,440 301,200 {33,760) -11% 

Administration 173,137 186,200 (13,063) -7% 

Donated Services 39,225 40,000 {775) -2% 

TJTALtxP:;.iSES 7"3.2;,; 305.2(i0 ,Sl.i,92<1/ .]":.; 

DESIGNAP:O ?110!ECT5 -H,Z?.7 20U,OOC (!6·11733) .30;, 

CON TING ENO fiESEfl.VE BS ,700 85,70:) 0 0 

21J!l-20l2 REVEN UE OVE~ EXPrnSt:S 132,753 0 132.755 100':~ 

July 2012 - Ju ne 2013 Budget 
REVENUE LANO-SIDE PORT-SIDE TOTAL 

Carry over from fisc.ll ycilr 2010-2011 204,000 100,000 304,000 

Bo;ird Desii::nated Fund· Zero Waste Program 30,000 0 30,000 

Assessments 617,600 198,000 81S,600 

Donated Servlce5 34,000 6,000 40,000 

TOTAL l{r;VENUE U35 ,GOO 304,000 1,W9.GOO 

EXPENSE LAND-SIDE PORT-SIDE TOTAL 

Sidewalk Operations & Beautification 279,800 0 279,800 

District Identity & Street~cape Improvement 168,490 138,810 307,300 

Administration 139,000 34,500 173,500 

Donated Services 34,000 6,000 40,000 

70T1;LEXPC:.NSES G21,2'.)0 1 1~.3:0 SCO,:iVO 
Designated Projects 204,000 100,000 304,000 > Contingency Reserve 63,310 24,690 85,000 

Nfi l~JCC 1o1t a 

2012-2013 



San Francisco Bay 

2·801 Leavenw0rth Street, Suite B-16 San Francisc0, CA 94133 

415.673 ,3530 I 415.673 .l!52"7 I i.r;ifo@visi1'fisl;iermanswharf.com 

ww11.1.visitfishermanswhar.f.e0m 





Dear Communitr M~mber, July 2013 

Therf912·2013 fisqil year ~aw the c.on,!inued1gfowth and success of our 6rganiiation. rNow in its eiCf:ith. ye_ar'bf operation the 

Fisherm_an's Wharf community Benefitlf;lis!rict1(FWfBD) has built very1pro.ductive relationships with.city agencies,and other 

neighb'orhagd grpups. \With a,2s 1mem)ler Board pf l!lireotors and [Q committees ana subcommittees, we have.over 150 active district 
and_ c:.ommuQity membeJs. We w.ouJd lik.e to thank rour volunteer[bpard•of Cti_re~ors as1well as .all ofthel(ndiviJll!a'ls (that S_rJpporrt(9ur 

distrit; thro.llghout th.e1year. 

We'a"r:._e h;fppy to ~report tha~ the first[phase of fhe lPublic Re_alm Plan f9.._r~effer:s_on _St(eet at Fisherman's \Wfi_a'ffl\vasrcom-pleted in ~un~ 

of 2013•and thatsupp_o"t for Phase·2tbas continuedlto(gain 'both m.omen(um a)lp support. At the Junef.!Oth Ribbon tCut!ing event, · 

MaYorlEd l!'e an.d'5upervlsoril!lavid Chiu both committed to ' h~lping find thg ~!f<!itional funds· neeped to[compl!'tg the last three blgc~ 
of t_h11t span fro in Pow~ll ~!reetllQ i,pn~ -..~!fgeJ . "'The FW&~D has ~lso cgfQmjttel:f to ~si.§t with funding.,wheh we 1can ~and ,s=ontfnuelthe 

&orQmJmity o.tiJrea9h n~eded ito k!!•P lihe aistrict!lnlprm.ed. ilw]luld i)ike•to 'tak.elthis'°melth_ank all of fl):osg who ttave ~upporcte::d tthfs 
· ·effon as \w.ell las rthe[cityagenctes. erilp'loye~ and~lgCte_a 1..officiais1that 1 h'"elp_eQ ma~e this a reality. 

:Puraccpmplishm~nts are inGly,fled in this ann_ual 1report b.u! here are a 1few hlghlfghts: 

Madg.improyg_ments~ g,yr Am~saddr pr~ograrfl whiCh has been su._cce~ful'in welcoming and ,a_ssisting visitOrs'to the ar.ea asiwell 

m~kinj: the wharf saren~l"(Q cleaner. 

Workesf wi_th Supel\Vispr ScpttW~in.er's toffice on llm_proVing the.Mobife 1Fo_od lFcfcl/ity legislation 'for the oity gf ~San Francis_cp. 

As~is_tec!,Super.vigJr Ghiu ton@1re.so[u_ti9n, Which wa5 1passg:d1by the ,Bo.ard of Supe~i~ors, ta keep Alcati:az lan'ding at,the W_tfaff. 

W.e workeB1with SF'fravel ·and 01h·er partner organizati'0Qs1to opp9se Assembly Bill 5. 
Cre(!t~d 1?.Sjfe and m_Qre1welcoming _s9rri_q_or on iraylor 2tre!!t from th~tCabl~ Cilr JurnarQufid !a Jeff er.son Stn~et by pernianen1fy 

lighlin..._c of all the trees_. 

Partn.ered with )he ,Ci!Y of San Fr:;m~lsco to<s~up11.ort ano_the.r sui:cessful 4th of NIY ,Celebration on fisherman's'Wharf. 
Supporte9 th!? .Ci~1cif San1Francj.sco's Sunday Stre~ts 1 p5agram bylholding a Family Fitness Fair in th_e hep rt of Fishermah~s Wharf. 

Pro.dyced th.e Sixth Anny~! PIERsafe{Em_e~gei\cy lPrepar-!!dn.ess O'ill at/Aquatic Park. 
We~onlinpe9 our~1::1ppqrt fgr:-Flgf!! lWg:ejs1San !FranCis.c_o_~hroUgh ,a 1maj9r 1sP,.onsof..ship 1on lbehalf oflFishgrrTianrs Wha·n Whfch,.\to 

d~te~ l t\.a~ de.liygrefi lhynQr$d~ t9r'tQQusanas1of vifiltgt~ to ihg W~rif. 

<;_ompleted t~e im11.lemenr.rn.on,pf an .$89)000, two-~.ear Z~co\Wa~ste ,grant securea through the DepartmenMf•th!' Envlrgnment to 
d~clare Fi~shi;lim,!trl~s Wh~rf a 'Zero \Waste ·Zone. 

l111proved th_e Joseph CoQra~ Squar..e park fpr visitors and residents throUJ:h,)ln organized effort with th.e SFHO, local businesses and . 
the Recr~ation and lPar~ Oepar~·ment. 

Pr.Q..Quced th_e "!!@bF~t'' eventLn t;>~cember Which ra[sed over'$5000 for local ch~·rities. 

Jleplac.ed the iconii: Fi;h.ertnan's\Wh_arf'Crab1Wh!'el sign at1the corn!'riof Jgffers9n and Taylor'Str_eet. 

we' enc0ura.ge you to1read,about theac~omplis~ments o'f the lFW.CllD included In this annual ir,l!port. If you are not already involved 
with the organiz~tion we woulJI as.k1that you1f9nsider jginlng on~19f o~r commit1_e~s wtiere you can 1make a fliffef e1;1ce. 

RegariJs, 

.. :·'· ,/' } // ' 
~A<;j/ff.}.y4f 

jrroy µrm_pbell '/' -

~?~~: 
David ,B_erbey 

Pr.esiaent Executive .Director 

·:1-' 

''• ,,. 

District Identity and Street Improvements (DISI): Marketing 

Provided event sponsorship for the 2012 Fourth of 

July Celeb.ration as well as a web site build-out and 

production of an event flyer distributed to local 

businesses, hotels and visitor ce nters. 

For Fleet Week 2012, the FWCBO provided major 

sponsorship to include print and broadcast media. The 

FWCBO also produced a jumbo postcard flyer with all 

the Fleet Week and America's Cup events on one side 

and MTA transit information and map on the reverse 

side. These were distributed to businesses, visitor 

centers, hotels and docents who were positioned at 

all F/E line stops between AT&T Park and Fisherman's 

Wharf. 
Supported the community by sponsoring these 

additional events: SF Ocean Film Festival, Opening Day 

on the Bay, Ghirardelli Chocolate Festival, SF Senior 

Center's 6Sth Anniversary Gala, The Bay Jnstitute's 

Annual Gala, the Telegraph Hill Neighborhood Center 

Gala and the fisherman's Wharf Merchant Association's 

Golf Tournament. 

Partnered with the St. Francis Yacht Club to help 

produce the annual ''lighted Boat Parade". 

Provided lights to the Sport Fishishing Fleet so they 

could decorate their boats located in the inner lagoon. 

Lighted the world famous "Crab Wheel" for the holidoys. 
Produce d a "lagoon Concert and lighting" event and 

worked with a local bus company to bring children from 

the Bayview YMCA and Telegraph Hilt Neighborhood 

center. 

Partnered 1,•1ith Andrew Freeman&. Co. to produce "Crab 

Fest 2012'' which included 10 restaurants, Honest Tea 

and Treasure Island Winery. The sold out event raised 

over $SOOO far two loca l charities and received a high 

degree of media coverage and mentions from SF Trave l, 

The Guardian, ~'lVU, KGO, KCBS and the Food Channel. 

The official Fisherman's Wharf website, www. 

visitfishermanswharf.com, received an updated mobile 

version 

Fisherman's Wharf was the inaugural site for the 2012 

Sunday Streets events throughout the city. The FWCBD 

also organized and sponsored a Family Fun Fair in the 

parking Jot at Jefferson and Mason that included garr 

and activities for participating famflie s. 

The FWCBD continued its partnership with SF Travel 

and Chaperon Visitor guide by runn ing ads in their 

publ ications and on the SF Travel website. 

Reprinted 80,000 Fisherman's Wharf brochures due to 

the increased demand from visitors. These brochures 

are distributed to 9 California Welcome Centers and at 

over 1400 tourist sites and hotels across the sate. 

We partnered with the Part of San Francisco on a full 

page editorial ad in US Air's innight magazi.ne in January. 

In April the FWCBD partnered with SF Travel to host over 

50 travel writers and editors at the wharf for an evening 

of tours and hosted food. This resulted in an editorial 

story on San Francisco and the Wharf in USA Today. 

The FWCBD completed filming 4 interviews of longtime 

residents and business owne rs at the wharf about 

their memories and recollections of the wharf. These 

inte rviews will be donated to the National Parks in order 

to help preserve the wharf's heritage and will be used 

by the FWCBD to create video shorts to share through 

social media outlets. 



Street Operations, Beautification and Order (SOBO) 

BEAU TIFICATION ~ MAll!TEitANCE 

Replacement of the Iconic Crab Wheel sign at Jefferson and 

Taylor, a project the FWCBD spearheaded and provided the 

majority of the funding for. 
Maintained and replaced the 67 flower baskets in the 

district. (Replanted in October 2012 and June 2013). 

lighted the Crab Wheel at Jeffe rson & Taylor for the 

holiday season. 

Maintained the lighted trees along Taylor Street from 

Jefferson Street to Bay Street. 

Annual sidewalk steam cleaning. 

Ongoing graffiti abatement cleaned within 48 hours of 

being reported . 

Instituted a new program that will provide the 

district with year round litler collection rather than a 

seasonal service. 

SECURITY 

Provided Sf PD lOB coverage (off duty SPFD Officers). 

The officers for the fiscal year gave out 234 citations 

and made over 21 arrests. 

Representation for the district on Central Station's 

Community Po lice Advisory Board. 

Held bi-monthly SFPD Community Meetings attended 

by the SFPD Centrnl Station Police Captain. 

Actively worked with SFPD to curtail aggressive 

panhandling and chronic behavioral issues in the 

district. 

Provided c.ell phones to the both Fisherman's Wharf 

Sf PD beat officers and the 108 officers so that the 

FWCBD and the community can easily contact them 

when on duty. · 

ln June of 2013 the FWCBD expanded our Ambassador 

program with Block by Block to offer two full time 

and one part time ambassador whose duties are tailor 

made for the needs of the district. These year round 

ambassadors not only assist visitors with directions 

and questions, but they will clean graffiti in the 

district, power wash sidewalks, collect litter and aid 

law enforcement and the Port of San Francisco. 

PIER:;Q!e 

Held monthly PIERsafe Meetings held on the first 

Wednesday of the .month. 

Weekly tests of the Fish Net radio network that 

includes over 15 participating members. 

SFFD NERT training and certification sessions held in 

September 2012 and April 2013 {aver 160 attendees) . 

The 6th Annual Emergency Preparedness Drill held in 

the fal1of2012 had over SO participants. 

Reprinted "Essential Contact Numbers" wa llet cards 

that were distributed in the district. 

S USTA!NP.G lllT'i 
Over 100 businesses have received zero \.Vaste 

training, signage, and/or change in service due to the 

Zero Waste Grant. 

We have launched the Zero Waste Business 

recognition program and creation of a new Zero 

Waste Business logo to recognize those businesses 

that have achieved a 90% diversion rate toward being 

a completely zero waste business. 

Through our partner l 2 Environmental, organized a 

peer-to-peer tour of Scoma's ZW program for other 

FW businesses. 

On March 18th the FWCBD hosted a tour for 

the International Zero Waste Conference which 

highlighted the efforts of Scoma's and TwoxSea Fish 

processors. The event also included a viewing of the 

highly acclaimed documentary "Trashed" at the Bay 

Theater. 

We held an E-Waste Collection event, free for district 

members, which resulted in the collection of over 

3500 lbs. of E Waste. 

The FWCBD Hosted a National Recycle Day in 

partnership with Keep CA Beautiful, the NPS, PIER 

39 and the Port of SF where hundreds of volunteers 

worked to educate visitors on public space recycling 

and compost ing, held a cleanup project at the Hyde 

Street Pier, a beach and park cleanup at Aquatic Park 

and an underwater cleanup at Pier 39. 

Public Realm and Urban Plann ing 

On January 2 of 2013 construction began on Phase 1 of the 

Jefferson Street project, something the FWCBD has been 

working towards since 2006. 

In August of 2012 the CBD hosted a public mee~ng that ~tied 

in all the final details about the project for the community; 

we then followed up that meeting with a series of over 18 

community meetings so that local businesses could meet 

directly with DPW during construction. 

In preparation for the impending construction, the FWCBO 

built the website NewJeffersonStreet.com. The website 

contains the vision documents for the project, a Q & A section, 

construction alerts, media stories and a meeting calendar. 

The site was designed to educate people about the project as 

well as a way for the FWCBD and the Department of Public 

Works to relay information to business and property owners 

about the project. In addition, the FWCBD also maintained a 

Face book page that tracked the project and provided pictures 

and updates of the project as it progressed. 

On June 20, 2013 the projected was completed and the FWCBD 

partnered with DPW to hold a ribbon cutting event which was 

attended by Mayor Ed l ee, Board of Supervisors President 

David Chiu and the Director of DPW, Mohammed Nuru. The 

event was we11 attended and received heavy media coverage 

as well as a commitment from the Mayor to assit with locating 

the additional funding needed to complete Phase 2. 

Articles were subsequently written by SF Streets blog, The 

San Francisco Chronicle and Curbed SF. Additonal media 

coverage was done by KNTV, KSTS, KPIX, KTVU and KQED. The 

coverage had an estimated worth of over $2S,OOO and reached 

approximately 316,000 people. 

The FWCBD continues its commitment to perform outreach 

and will continue to work with The Department of Public 

Works, the San Francisco Planning Department and the Port of 

San Francisco to make sure the community is keep abreast and 

informed on all aspects of Phase 2 of the project as we work to 

locate funding to move forward . 



Assessment Methodology 
The Dis ~rict is funded through an annua l assessment for i's 
years from the prope rty owners for both the land-side and port­

side boundaries of the district. The FWCBD Board of Direc tors 

incresed the Landside Assessments by the CPI of 2.9% for the 

2012-2013 fiscal year. 

LMID-S IDE CBD PROPERT\' A'SESSMtiHS 
For the land-side, there are four property variables that are used 

in determining individual assessments. The factors are: 

1. linear frontage (sidewalk frontage) 

2. Land area 
3. Entire usable building square footage 

ii. Building use 

There is a total of 2,151,139 square feet in gross lot size, 28,276 

feet in linear frontage and 4,486,146 in building square footage. 

Three benefit zones have been created in the District for 

calculating assessments. 

Benefit Zone 1 includes roughly all parcels north of 

Bay/North Point, between Polk ond Powell to Jefferson. The 

formula for calculating the assessment is: 

$0.091612 per square foot of lot size 

+ $ 5.4296 per linear foot of lot frontage 

+ $ 0.072168 per square foot !Building Use "A or B") or 

$ 0.033368 per square foot !Building Use "C-E") or 

$.0.05 per square foot for residential "F") 

Note: See chart below for building categories. 

Example: A 5,000 square foot lot, with 50 feet of frontage and 

4,000 square feet of usable retail or commercial building use: 

5,000 x .091612 = $ 458.06 in lot size 

50 x $ 5.4296 = $ 271.48 in linear frontage, and 

4,000 x $ .072168 = $ 288.67 in bldg sq footage IA or B) 

Total assessment: = $1,018.21 per year 

Benefit Zone 2 includes parcels west of Polk and east of Powell. 

Benefit Zone 2 parcels are assessed at the same rate as above 

but without a building factor assessment. The formula for 

calculating the assessment is: 

$0.091612 per square foot of lot size 

+ $ 5.4296 per linear foot of lot frontage 

=Total Assessment 

Benefit Zone 3 includes the ILWU* block bordered by Beach, 

Mason, Taylor and North Point. Parcels are assessed on the 

basis of linear frontage only. All residential parcels are as·sessed 

$0.05 per square foot per year. The formula for calculating the 

assessment is: 

$ 5.4296 per linear foot of lot fronta ge IJLWU Block)= Total 

Assessment 

• The lLWU is designated as Benefit Zone 3, because of its 

unique position in the district and was assessed upon its four 

sides of linear frontage only. 

Building Uses In Land-Side Cbd For Zone 1 

DUILCll/G 
USE CODE 

A 

CAITGORY 

Ret:iil space, hotels, motels, visitor related 

Office and Commercial uses, free standine 

pilrkingstructurcs 

lndust rial/Manu factu rinc/Oistributicn 

lmtitutional (City, County, Schoel, public utility, parks, etc.} 

Church, non-profit, tax·exempt, affordable 

housini;, rcnt·conlrollcd housinc 

Multi -unit housinc, condos, apilrlmcnts 

Non-functional building structures, 

POP,T-SIDt CBD PF.OPERTY ."'-SSESS1V!EN TS 
The port-side is comprised of retail/walk-in, hotel , food and 

beverage businesses, general motorized land-based tour 

operators and for-profit parking lots. These businesses a re 

assessed on their annual gross sales as reported to the Port 

of San Francisco from the previous calendar year. This iiata is 

provided to the Port of San Francisco on a monthly basis and is 

public information. The assessment factor applied to that gross 

sales figure is .0014%. 

Example : 

Gross Sales $1.000,000 x .0014 = $1,400 Assessmen~ 

Tour operators/tour boat vesse ls and related businesses (including 

large and small tour boats and sport fishing boats), are assessed 

based on the number of passengers per vessel operator or per 

horse drawn carriage company or per pedicab company. The 

assessments range from $250 to $2,000. 

2011 - 2012 Balance Sheet 
ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash 47,464 

Savings & Short Term lm>cstml?nts 312,461 

Total Cash/Short Term Investments 359,92S 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVflBLE 

Grants Receivable 8,460 

Tola[ Accounls Receivable 8,460 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Accounts Receiv.:ib1C!s Year-End 16,848 

PrepJid Expenses & lmurance 11,770 

; Total Other Cur1enl Assets 28,618 

FIXED ASSETS 

Total theed as.sets net of accumulated 

depreciation SZ,29Z 

TO T/\l ;._s.;rrs ..;45,29'.i " 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Polyable 31,160 

Accrued Expemes Yeilr·End 12,0S6 

Total Uablllties 43,216 

EQUITY 

Total Equity 406,080 

:OTt. L LJ AS.! UT!C.5 & EQIJlT'r 4.:9,2% 

2012-2013 

July l, 2012- June 30, 2013 {Budget vs Actual) 

REVENUE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE %VARIANCE 

Carry over from fiscal ye.ir 11/12 267,010 304,000 J36,990) -12% 

Assess111cnts-loindsidc 609,603 617,600 (7.997) ·1% 

Asscssmcnts-Portsidc 189,163 198,000 (8.837) ·4% -Program Spomorship/Grnnts 30,000 30,000 JOI 0' 

Special Events 5,117 0 5,117 100 

Interest So:ivincs/Short·Term Investment 767 0 767 100% 

Oor1atedScrvices 47,086 40,000 (7.0861 18% 

TOT.-"\L l\EVCNUt 1 1•1!::,7.\3 l , 189,EOU (40,SS2) ·l.", 

EXPENSE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE %VARIANCE 

Sidewalk Operations & Beautification 265,305 279,800 114,495) -5% 

District Identity & Strectscape lmprovC!mcnt 297,687 307,300 (9,613) -3% 

Adminlstr<ition 177,412 173,500 3,912 2% 

Donated Services 47,086 40,000 (7.086) 18% 

TJT;.. L :;~i;:.r~5E~ 7!7 . ..l)IJ SOO GOO (13. !lOJ ._t;;, 

oc:>:GN;.T.;O ?R.OJECTS '35,Gl~ .;c.:,occ (2CS,J22) ?2"· 

CONTjNGENC'I RESERVE ::S.GCO !lS,OGO 0 

201 t ·20! '? RE\/!ONUE ovrn EXP ENSE5 :_77_-;n; 0 177,573 

July 2013 - June 2014 Budget 
REVENUE LAND-SIDE PORT-SIDE TOTAL 

Carry over from fiscal year 2011-2012 152,546 75,135 227,681 

Assess ments 631,200 217,200 844,570 

Donated Services 34,000 6,000 40,000 

TQT.'l,l HEVCNU[ 317,7.;:U 293,335 1,l !.?.,251 

EXPENSE LANO-SIDE PORT-SIDE TOTAL 

Sidewalk Operations & Beautification 292,600 0 292,600 

District Identity & Strectscapc Improvement 160,000 130,910 290,910 

Admi1,istration 144,472 36,118 180,590 

Donated Service~ 34,000 6,000 40,000 

TOlAL tXPENSt:S j) l. 072 173,023 uo,:.1co 
Designated Project5 lS2,S46 75,135 227,681 ) Contini;ency Reserve 63,310 24,690 85,000 

N(T ll'KOM~ 0 0 

2013-2014 
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Barlow & HutShan 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, I I 82 MARKET STREET, SUITE 400 

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-492 I 

(41 5) 522-2490 

FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 

We have reviewed the fiCcompanying sta.tement of financial position of the 
FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO (a nonprofit corporation) 
as of June 30, 2010 and the related statements of activities and cash 
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Statements on Standards 
for Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of 
certified Public Accountants. A11 information included in these 
financial statements is the representation of the management of the 
FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRf:>.NCISCO. 

A review consists principally of inquiri(.:;s of organization personnel and 
analytical procedures applied to financi.::il data, It is substantia11y 
less in scope than an audit in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards, the objective of which is the expression of an 
opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that 
should be made to the accompanying £inancia1 statements in order for them 
to be in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

The additional information on page nine is presented for supplementary 
analysis purposes on1y and has not been subjected to the inquiry and 
analytical procedures applied in the review of the f i.nancial statements. 
This supplementary schedule was compiled .from information that is the 
representation of the management, without audit or review, a.nd we, 
therefore, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on 
such data. 

San Francisco, California 
October 22, 2010 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

S'IATENENT Of ACTIVTTTES 

YEAR ENDED J:Jl'.;E 30, 2010 

(S~e accountan~s' review repor:) 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

STATEMENT OP CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JONE 30, 2010 

(See accountants' review report) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Assessments received 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees 
Grants and contributions received 
Interest and other income received 

Net cash provided by operating activities 
and net increase in cash 

I 

CASH - Beginning of year 

CASH - End of year 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in net assets 
Items not requiring cash: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Uncollected assessments 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Increase in assessments receivable 
Increase in grants rece.i vable 
Decrease in prepaid costs 
Decrease in accounts.payable 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

See notes to financial statements. 

Barlow & Huo·han 
'"" 

CER'r!Fll1,l> f'UllLI(; Acr:.HlNTANT~; 

$720,458. 
(702,684) 

42,625 
l 473 

61,872 

225,809 

$287,681 

$126,702 

l8,902 
19,567 

(59,525) 
(25,250} 

8,117 
_l?_G_, 6 41 ) 

$ 6l,872 

-4-
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30 I 2010 

(See accountants' review report) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

History and Operations 

The Fisherman's Wharf Association of San Francisco (the Association) 
was incorporated in California on February 23, 2.006 as a non­
profit public benefit corporation. Its purpose is to provide 
services to the Fisherman's Wharf Landside and Portside Community 
Benefit Districts (the Districts). The members of the Landside 
District include the owners of al 1 parcels of land subject to 
property tax assessments within the geographic area of Fisherman's 
Wharf as established on July 26, 2005 by the Board of Supervisors 
of the City and County of .San Francisco. Members of the Portside 
District include the tenants who have leased property from the 
Port of San Francisco wi thi:1 the Portside District as established 
by the Board of Supervisors on December 3, 2006. 

Upon formation of each District, its members were subject to multi-
year special assessments imposed by the City under the Property 
and Business Improvement District Law of 1994. Under contracts 
with the City, the Association receives these special assessments 
and, in exchange, provides certain services to the members of the 
Districts. These services include supplemental security services 
to maintain order, the cleaning and ~aintenance of sidewalks, the 
removal of graffiti, the coordination of services provided to the 
homeless, neighborhood beautification and tree-planting programs, 
and the organization and funding of special events. In addition 
to the special assessment funds, the contracts with the City 
require that the Association raise a specified level of private 
donations to supplement the specJaI assessments. 

The annual special assessments imposed by the City will expire on 
December 31, 2020, unless the Districts are disestablished earlier 
by a majority vote of its members. The Association's contracts 
with the City will expire on December 31, 2021, but both would 
also expire upon the disestablishment of either of the Districts. 

Barlow & I-Iughan 
CE!<T!FIED PUBLIC ACUll!NTANTS 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES 'I'O F'INANCIAI. STATEMENTS (Continued) 

JUNE 30, 2010 

(See accountants' review report) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Basis of Presentation 

The Association reports information regarding its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets: 
unrestricted net assets, tE~mporarily restricted net assets, and 
permanently restricted net assets, based upon the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 

Income is recogni.zed as temporarily restricted if restrictions 
imposed by the donor will not be satisfied by the end. of the 
current year. At June 30, 2010 the Association had no permanently 
restricted net assets. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial scatements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Income Tax Status 

The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the Association 
qualifies as a tax exempt organization under Section 501 (c) (3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code. The Association is therefore generally 
exempt from income taxes. Income taxes are payable, however, on 
revenue from sources unrelated to its tax exempt purpose. There 
were no such revenues during tlH? year ended June 3 O , 2O1 o . 

Donated Services 

A number of volunteers have donated significant amounts o.f time to 
the Association's activities. Tbese donated services, however, 
are not reflected in the financial statements since they do not 
meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services under 
generally accepted accounting principles. Management (~stimates 

the value of these services to be $50,125. 

Barlo-..v & Hughan 
CERTIP!ED l'UHLI<. M:o ;rnJNT.'\NTS 



FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

JUNE 3 0 I 2 0 1 0 

(See accountants' review report) 

2. CASH 

Cash at June 30, 2010 consisted of the following: 

Cash in checking account 
Cash deposited in interest-bearing account.: 

3. OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 

$ 53,039 
234,642 

ill7 f 681 

-7-

Off ice furniture and equipment ar:e stat eel a.t cost. DepreciatiOJ) is 
provided using the straight-line method over five years. Depreciation 
charged to general and administrative expenses for the year ended LTune 

30, 2010 was $1,036. 

Office furniture and equipment at ~Tune 30, 2010 consisted of tl:le 
following: 

Furniture and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

$5,182 
2,536 

Intangible assets are stated at cost. Amortization is provided using the 
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of between 
three to fifteen years. Amortization charged to general and 
administrative expenses for the year ended ,June 30, 2010 was $17,866. 

At June 30, 2 010 net intangible assets were comprised of the .following: 

Organization costs 
Website development costs 
Signage and logos 

Less accumulated amortization 

Barlow & Hurrhan ,..., 
CEWfl FIETJ PUllUC ,\Cl:lllrNT,\NTS 

$ 83, 551 
35,000 

9,432 
127,983 
59,969 

~. 6fL_Q_l4 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -(Continued) 

,JUNE 3 0 I 2 0 l 0 

(See accountants' review report) 

5. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets at. June 30, 2010 were comprised of a 
grant which had not been received by year end and contributions which 
had been received but which had one or more restrictions unsatisfied 
at year end. These amounts are summarized as follows: 

City and County of San Francisco 
Steve Wiezbowski memorial garden 

6. RISK AND lJNCERTAINTIES 

$25,250 
5,825 

~075 

Special benefit assessments are received under ~ contract with the City 
of San Francisco and represent approximately 86% of the 
Association's total revenues. Under the :::erms of the contracts the 
City can suspend distributions and ultimately terminate the 
contract~ if the Association fails to provide adequate services to 
the Distr:i.cts. The contracts expire on December 31, 2 021 and could 
be terminated at an earlier da::e if either the Fisherman's Wharf 
Community Landside or Port side Benefit Districts are disestablished 
by a vote of more than 50% of the assessed members. 

The Association maintains its cash balances at a financial institution 
where the deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation. At June 3 O, 2oio the Association's uninsured cash 
balances totaled approximately $58,000. 

In preparing these financial statements, the Association has evaltiated 
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure 
through October 22, 2010 the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

Barlow & H ughan 
CEr{TIFIEll f't:J\LlC ,·\\~(;tJ1JNT1\NTS 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of the 
FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO (a nonprofit corporation) as 
of June 30, 2011 and the related statements of activities and cash flows\ for 
the year then ended. A review includes primarily applying analytical 
procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of .the 
association management. A review is substantially less in scope thatj an 
audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding;the 
financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of !the 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles gener~lly 
accepted in the United States of America and for the designing, implement~ng, 
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and ~air 
presentation of the financial statements. 

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on 
Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require us to perform 
procedures to obtain limited assuranc,e that there are no mater,ial 
modifications that should be made to the financial statements. We beli:eve 
that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our repqrt. 

I 

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications t~at 
should be made to the accompanying financi~l statements in order for therit to 
be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Un'iited 
States of America. , 

The additional information on page ten\ is presented for. supplement\ary 
analysis purposes only and has not been subjected to the inquiry ~nd 
analytical procedures applied in the review of the financial statements. 
This supplementary schedule was compiled from information that is the 
representation of the management, without a'udit or review, and we, therefo're, 
do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on such data. 

San Francisco, California 
October 22, 2011 

I 

I 



FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2011 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash (Note 2) 
Assessments receivable 
Grant receivable (Note 5) 

ASSETS 

Sponsorships and contributions receivable 
Prepaid costs 

OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - Net of 
accumulated depreciation (Note 3) 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - Net of amortization 
(Note 4) 

LIABILITIES 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

UNRESTRICTED 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED (Notes 1 and 5) 

See notes to financial statements. 

,-2-

$248,994 
107,QOS 

80,0,00 
15,~85 
7' 1!59 

459,343 

1, 6'5 6 

6L815 
I, 
1 

$522, 8:14 

i 

$ 57,767 

385,047 

' 
80,000 

465, O:il7 

$s22,si4 



PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES 
Contributions and sponsorships 
Grants 
Special benefit assessments 
Interest and other inCome 
Net assets released from restrictions 

EXPENDITURES 
Program services 

Landside - District identity and 
street imprOvements 

Landside - Street operations, 
beautification and order 

Pcrtside - District identity 
and street improvements 

General and administrative expenses 
Fund-raising expenses 

CHAJ.'JGE IN NET J!.SSETS 

FUND BALhNCES - Beginning of year 

FUND 3AL1'.NCES - End of year 

See notes to .financial statements~ 

FISHERMAN'S WHAl\F ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRJINCISCO 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUUE 30, 2011 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

U:t~estricted 

$ 15,850 

771, 011 
1,818 

31. 07 5 
819,754 

213,926 

295,195 

134,666 
196, 664 

---1...1.Q.Q. 
843,153 

(23,399i 

4(}B, 446 

$385,047 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$80, 000 

(31, 075) 

48,925 

48, 925 

31. 075 

$80,000 

Total 

$ 15,850 
BG,000 

771, 011 
1,818 

858,679 

213r92S 

295r195 

134,666 
196, 664 

2 700 
543,153 

25,526 

439, 521 

$~6s,oq1 

-3-



FISHEBMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

. YEAR ENDEIJ ... JUNE-30,. 2.0lL 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Assessments received 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees 
Grants received, 
Sponsorships and contributions received 
Interest and other income received 

Net cash used for operating activities 

CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of office equipment 

NET DECREASE IN CASH 

CASH - Beginning of year 

CASH - End of year 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
TO NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in net assets 
Items not requiring cash: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Loss on disposition of equipment 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Increase in assessments receivable 
Increase in grants receivable 
Increase in sponsorships receivable 
Increase in prepaid costs 
Increase in accounts payable 

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

See notes to financial statements. 

$728,867 
(794,105) 

25, 250 
565 

l, 818 
(37 f 605) 

(1, 082) 

(38, 687) 

287,681 

$248,994 

$ 25,526 

7,335 
835 

(42, 144) 
(54, 750) 
(15, 285) 

(224) 
41, 102 

$ (37 r 605) 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

History and Operations 

The Fisherman's Wharf Association of San Francisco (the Association)·;was 
incorporated in California on February 23, 2006 as a non-profit public 
benefit corporation. Its purpose is to provide services to ithe 
Fisherman's Wharf Landside and Portside Community Benefit Districts 
(the Districts). The members of the Landside District include the 
owners of all parcels of land subject to property tax assessments 
within the geographic area of Fisherman's Wharf as established on July 
26, 2005 by the Board of Supervisors of the City and County of San 
Francisco. Members of the Portside District include the tenants who 
have leased property from the Port of San Francisco within the 
Portside District as established by the Board of Supervisor~ on 
December 3, 2006. 

Upon formation of each District, its members were subject to multi-year 
special assessments imposed by the City under the Property and 
Business Improvement District Law of 19 94. Under contracts with the 
City, the Association receives these special assessments and,' in 
exchange, provides certain services to the members of the Districts. 
These services include supplemental security services to maintain 
order, the cleaning and maintenance of sidewalks, the removal: of 
graffiti, the coordination of services provided to the homeless, 
neighborhood beautification and tree-planting programs, and· .the 
organization and funding of special events, In addition to ~he 
special assessment funds, the contracts with the City require that the 
Association raise a specified level of private donati.ons to supplerr\ent 
the special assessments. · 

The annual special assessments imposed by the City will expire on Deceml:)er 
31, 2020, unless the Districts are disestablished earlier by a 
majority vote of its members. The Association's contracts with j:he 
City will expire on December 31, 2021, but both would also expire upon 
the disestablishment of either of the Districts. 



FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

JUNE 30, 2011 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Basis of Presentation 

The Association reports information regarding its financial position, and 
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net 
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted 
net assets, based upon the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions. 

Income is recognized as temporarily restricted if restrictions 
imposed by the donor will not be satisfied by the end of the current 
year. At June 3 0, 2011 the Association had no permanently restricted 
net assets. 

Income is recognized when the special assessment imposed by the City 
becomes due and enforceable for collection by the City assessor. The 
City and County of San Francisco serves as an agent in collecting ,and 
transmitting the assessments. 

Assessments Receivable 

Assessments not collected and transmitted by the City at year end are 
recorded as receivable. Management believes that these receivables;are 
fully cbllectable by the City d.nd no allowance is needed to provide 
for doubtful receivables. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with genera:11y 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates~ 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

JUNE 3 0 , 2011 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Income Tax Status 

The Association qualifies as a tax exempt organization and is therefore 
generally exempt from income taxes. Income taxes are payaple, 
however, on revenue from sources unrelated to its tax exempt purpose. 
There were no such revenues during the year. For the year ended June 
30, 2011 there were no penalty or interest assessments by any 
government agency recorded in the financial statements. In addition, 
the Association has not taken an unsubstantiated tax position that 
would require provision of a liability under Accounting Standards 
Codification Topic 740, "Income Taxes". The Association's Forms 990, 
Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the years ended 
June 30, 2008 and later are subject to examinations by Federal and 
state taxing authorities 

Donated Services 

A number of organizations have donated services and provided discounted 
rental and meeting space to the Association's activities. These 
donated services, however, are not reflected in the finanqial 
statements since they do not meet the criteria for recognition as 
contributed services under generally accepted accounting principles. 
Management estimates the value of these services 'to be $43, 713. 

2. CASH 

Cash at June 30, 2011 consisted of the following: 

Cash in checking account 
Cash deposited in interest-bearing account 

$147,003 
101, 991 

$248,994 



FISHE:EU«AN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

JUNE 30, 2011 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

3. OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 

I: 
l: 

l; 

;-a­
l 

Office furniture and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is prov_:\.ded 
using the straight-line method over five years. Depreciation charged to 
general and administrative expenses for the year ended June 30, 2011 1was 
$1,136. ' 

Office furniture and equipment at June 30, 2011 consisted of the following: 

Furniture and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

$5,150 
3,494 

$1,656 

Intangible assets are stated at cost. Amortization is provided using ,the 
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of between th'ree 
to fifteen years. Amortization charged to general and administrative 
expenses for the year ended June 30, 2011 was $6,199. · 

At June 30, 2011 net intangible assets were comprised of the following: 

Organization costs 
Website development costs 
Signage and logos 

Less accumulated amortization 

$ 83,551 
35,000 

9,432 
127,983 

66,168 

$ 61, 815 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -(Continued) 

JUNE 30, 2011 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

5. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2011 were comprised of a 
grant which had not been received by year end. The grant was awarded 
by the City and County of San Francisco and is restricted to use in 
zero waste programs. 

6. RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES 

Special benefit assessments are received under a contract with the City <?-nd 
County of San Francisco and represent approximately 86% of the 
Association's total revenues. Under the terms of the contracts the City 
can suspend distributions and ultimately terminate the contracts i(the 
Association fails to provide adequate services to the Districts. !The 
contracts expire on December 31, 2021 and could be terminated at an 
earlier date if either the Fisherman's Wharf Community Landside.or 
Portside Benefit Districts are disestablished by a vote of more than .50% 
of the assessed members. 

In preparing these financial statements, the Association has evaluated ev~nts 
and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through October 
22, 2011, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 



Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 

Media and production 
Street maintenance 

and operations 
Events marketing and 

media production 
Brochure distribution 
Advertising, PR kits, 

seasonal banners 
Hanging flower baskets 
Insurance 
Security and parking 

operations 
website maintenance 
Planning and zoning 
Grant management 
Office expenses 
Accounting and legal 
Emergency preparedness 
Depz:ecation and 

amortization 
Occupancy 
Travel and meetings 
Misc·e11aneous 

FISHERMAN' S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SllN FIUINCISCO 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

Prcgram Services 
Land side 

District identity Street operations, 
and street beautification 

improvements and :)rde_r 

$ 25,315 $ 40,995 

25,315 40,995 

19,157 

112, 108 

58,175 
29,093 

28,623 
58,604 

76, 391 
13,615 
39,881 

S,837 

69 l,260 

$213,928 $295.195 

Program Services 
Portoide 

District identity 
and street 

i:nprovemen':s 

$ 21,170 

21,170 

39, 582 
23, 803 

26,401 

1,480 
11, 039 
11,, 122 

69 

$13 ... 666 

General and 
Administrative 

Landside 

97,14~ 

13,747 
9.073 

119,964 

10, 315 

1,105 

5,908 

10,664 
4, 951 

7,335 
-6, 660 

891 
2,056 

$169,849 

Part side 

$17,143 
2,343 
1,543 

21, (129 

1,042 

1, 886 
957 

1,173 
140 

_2§..§. 

526.815 

See notes to financial statements~ 

.Fund-raisincr 

$2,700 

$2, 700 

-10-

Total 

$201. 767 
16,090 
10 r 616 

223,473 

29,472 

----113,213 

97' 757 
52,896 

55,024 
58,604 

6, 950 

77,871 
24, 654 
51,003 

2,700 
12,550 

5, 908 
·s, 837 

7,335 
7, &33 
1,031 
4,042 

$843,153 
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Barlow &Hughan CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS,1182 MARKET STREET, SUITE 400 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4921 

(415) 522-2490 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REVIEW REPORT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of the 
FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO (a nonprofit corporation) 
as of June 30, 2012 and the related statements of activities and cash 
flows for the year then ended. A review includes primarily applying 
analytical procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries 
of the association management. A review is substantially less in scope 
than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion 
regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we· do not 
express such an opinion. 

t 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and for the designing, 
implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the 

\.w preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements. 

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements 
on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require us to 
perform procedures to obtain limited assurance that there are no material 
modifications that should be made to the financial statements. We believe 
that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our 
report. 

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that 
should be made to the accompanying financial statements in order for them 
to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

The additional information on page ten is presented for supplementary 
analysis purposes only and has not been subjected to the inquiry and 
analytical procedures applied in the review of the financial statements. 
This supplementary schedule was compiled from information that is the 
representation of the management, without audit or review, and we, 
therefore, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on 
such data. 

San Francisco, California 
October 1, 2012 



FISHERMAN1 S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2012 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash (Note 2) 
Assessments receivable 
Grant receivable (Note 5) 
Prepaid costs 

ASSETS 

OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - Net of 
accumulated depreciation {Note 3) 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - Net of amortization 
(Note 4) 

LIABILITIES 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

UNRESTRICTED 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED (Notes 1 and 5) 

See notes to financial statements. 

Barlow & Hughan 
CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

-2-

$334,567 
73,334 
32,260 
11. 115 

451,276 

939 

55,616 

$507,831 

$ 30,330 

445,241 

32,260 
477,501 

$507,831 



PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES 
Contributions and sponsorships 
Special benefit assessments 
Interest and other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

EXPENDITURES 
Program services 

Landside - District identity and 
street improvements 

Landside - street operations, 
beautification and order 

Portside - District identity 
and street improvements 

General and administrative expenses 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

FUND B/U.ANCES - Beginning of year 

FtJND BALANCES - End of year 

See notes to financial statements. 

Barlow & Hughan 
CEJl.Tff'fl';D f'UllLlC ACCOUJl.7AM'ni 

FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN P'RANCJ:SCO 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

(see independent accountants' review report) 

Unrestricted 

$ 7,500 
753,028 

2,193 
47,740 

810. 461 

163,358 

279,691 

134,081 
173,137 
750,267 

60,194 

385, 047 

$445. 241 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

(47,740) 
{47, 740) 

(47, 740) 

80, 000 

$32' 2-60 

Total 

$ 7,500 
753. 028 

2' 193 

762,721 

163,358 

279,691 

134, 081 
173,137 

2..20,267 

12,454 

465,047 

$477,501 

-3-



FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

(See independent accountants 1 review report} 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Assessments received 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees 
Grants received 
Sponsorships and contributions received 
Interest and other income received 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH - Beginning of year 

CASH - End of year 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in net assets 
Items not requiring cash: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in assessments receivable 
Decrease in grants receivable 
Decrease in sponsorships receivable 
Increase in prepaid costs 
Decrease in accounts payable 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

See notes to financial statements. 

Barlow & Hughan 
CERTIFIED PtmLlC ACCOUNTAN1'S 

$787,599 
(774, 744) 

47,740 
22,785 

2,193 
85,573 

248,994 

$334,567 

$ 12,454 

6,916 

34,571 
47,740 
15, 2a·s 

(3, 956) 
{27,437) 

$ 85,573 

-4-
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30 1 2012 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

History and operations 

The Fisherman's Wharf Association of San Francisco (the Association) 
was incorporated in California on February 23, 2006 as a non­
profit public benefit corporation. Its purpose is to provide 
services to the Fisherman's Wharf Landside and Portside Community 
Benefit Districts {the Districts) . The members of the Landside 
District include the owners of all parcels of land subject to 
property tax assessments within the geographic area of Fisherman's 
Wharf as established on July 26, 2005 by the Board of Supervisors 
of the City and county of San Francisco. Members of the Portside 
District include the tenants who have leased property from the 
Port of San Francisco within the Portside District as established 
by the Board of supervisors on December 3, 2006. 

Upon formation of each District, its members were subject to multi­
year special assessments imposed by the City under the Property 
and Business Improvement District Law of 1994. Under contracts 
with the City, the Association receives these special assessments 
and, in exchange, provides certain services to the members of the 
Districts. These services include supplemental security services 
to maintain order, the cleaning and maintenance of sidewalks, the 
removal of graffiti, the coordination of services provided to the 
homeless, neighborhood beautification and tree-planting programs, 
and the organization and funding of special events. In addition 
to the special assessment funds, the contracts with the City 
require that the Association raise a specified level of private 
donations to supplement the special assessments. 

The annual special assessments imposed by the City will expire on 
December 31, 2020, unless the Districts are disestablished earlier 
by a majority vote of its members. The Association's contracts 
with the City will expire on December 31, 2021, but both would 
also expire upon the disestablishment of either of the Districts. 

Barlow & Hughan 
GERTIJ!IID PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

JUNE 30, 2012 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Basis of Presentation 

The Association reports information regarding its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets: 
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and 
permanently restricted net assets, based upon the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 

Income is recognized as temporarily restricted if restrictions 
imposed by the donor will not be satisfied by the end of the 
current year. At June 30, 2012 the Association had no permanently 
restricted net assets. 

Income is recognized when the special assessment imposed by the City 
becomes due and enforceable for collection by the City assessor. 
The City and County of San Francisco serves as an ag.ent in 
collecting and transmitting the assessments. 

Assessments Receivable 

Assessments not collected and transmitted by the City at year end are 
recorded as receivable. Management believes that these receivables 
are fully collectable by the City and no allowance is needed to 
provide for doubtful receivables. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Barlow & Hughan 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

JUNE 30, 2012 

. (See independent accountants' review report) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Income Tax Status 

The Association qualifies as a tax exempt organization and is 
therefore generally exempt from income taxes. Income taxes are 
payable, however, on revenue from sources unrelated to its tax 
exempt purpose. There were no such revenues during the year. For 
the year ended June 30, 2012 there were no penalty or interest 
assessments by any government agency recorded in the financial 
statements. In addition, the Association has not taken an 
unsubstantiated tax position that would require provision of a 
liability under Accounting Standards Codification Topi'c 740, 
"Income Taxes". The Association's Forms 990, Return of 
Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the years ended June 30, 
2008 and later are subject to examinations by Federal and State 
taxing authorities 

Donated Seryices 

A number of organizations have donated services and provided 
discounted rental and meeting space to the Association's 
activities. These donated services, however, are not reflected in 
the financial statements since they do not meet the criteria for 
recognition as contributed services under generally accepted 
accounting principles. Management estimates the value of these 
services to be $45,225. 

2. CASH 

Cash at June 30, 2012 consisted of the following: 

cash in checking account 
Cash deposited in interest-bearing account 

Barlow & Hughan 
Cl!RTIFIID PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

$ 52,383 
282.184 

$334,567 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

JUNE 30, 2012 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

3. OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 

Office furniture and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is 
provided using the straight-line method over five years. Depreciation 
charged to general and administrative expenses for the year ended June 
30, 2012 was $717. 

Office furniture and equipment at June 30, 2012 consisted of the 
following: 

Furniture and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

$5,150 
4,211 

$ 939 

Intangible assets are stated at cost. Amortization is provided using the 
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of between 
three to fifteen years. Amortization charged to general and 
administrative expenses for the year ended June 30, 2012 was $6,199. 

At June 30, 2012 net intangible assets were comprised of the following: 

Organization costs 
Website development costs 
Signage and logos 

Less accumulated amortization 

Barlow & Hughan 
CERTIJi'IED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

$ 83,551 
35,000 

9,432 
127,983 

72,367 

$ 55,616 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -(Continued) 

JUNE ·30 I 2012 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

5. TEMPORARIIJY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets at June 3 o, 2012 was comprised of a 
grant which had not been received by year end. The grant was awarded 
by the City and County of San Francisco and is restricted to use in 
zero waste programs. 

6. RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES 

Special benefit assessments are received under a contract with the City 
and County of San Francisco and represent approximately 99% of the 
Association's total revenues. Under the terms of the contracts the 
City can suspend distributions and ultimately terminate the contracts 
if the Association fails to provide adequate services ta the 
Districts. The contracts expire on December 31, 2021 and could be 
terminated at an earlier date if either the Fisherman's· Wharf 
Community Landside or Portside Benefit Districts are disestablished 
by a vote of more than 50% of the assessed members. 

At June 30, 2012 the Association had uninsured cash deposits with a bank 
totaling approximately $32,000. 

7 . SUBSEQUENT EVEN'I'S 

In preparing these financial statements, the Association has evaluated 
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure 
through October 1, 2012, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

Barlow & H ughan 
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Salaries 
f'iljroll t.oxes 
Employee benefits 

Advertising ar.d media 
production 

Street maintenance 
and operations 

Zero waste program 
Events marketing 
Hanging flower baskets 
Jnsurance 
Security and parking 

operations 
Website maintenance 
Planning and zoning 
Ambassador program 
Office expenses 
Accounting and legal 
Emergency preparedness 
Deprecation and 

amortization 
Occupancy 
Travel and meetings 
Miscellaneous 

FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN F'.AANCISCO 

5TATEMENT OF FIJNC''.'lGNAL EXl?ENSSS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

\See independent accountants' review report) 

Program Services 
Landside 

District identity 
and street 

improvements 

$ Hi,793 

Hi, 793 

45,323 

47,374 

9,921 
22,016 
21, 925 

Sl'i3,358 

Stre~t operations, 
beautification 

and order 

s 31, 892 

31, 8 92 

72, 33() 
25, 412 

64, l 84 

52, 094 

29,387 

4,392 

$279,691 

Program Services 
!?art_side 

District identity 
and street 

improvements 

s 16t 793 

16, 7'13 

)6,612 

31, 699 

9,513 
'17,539 
n, 925 

§1341 081 

General and 
Administrative 

Landside 

s 81,265 
l L 849 
_hill 
9€,721 

7' 4()0 

ll,242 
4, 380 

6, 916 
5, 546 
1,277 

642 

Sl34, 737 

Ports id" 

$25~ 769 
3,098 
l.267 

30, 134 

1,596 

2,763 
1,245 

2,2!57 
231 

__ 144 

$38,400 

See notes to financial statements. 

Barlow & Hughan 
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Total 

$172,512 
14,947 

4.880 
192, 33'1 

81,, 93S 

12, :no 
25,412 
7 9, 07 3 

64' lf'4 
B,9% 

52,094 
19,440 
39,555 
73,237 
14, 005 

6, 225 
~,392 

6,916 
7' 833 
i' 508 

793 

$750, 267 
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Bar low & Hughan CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCO ONT ANTS, 1182 MARKET STREET, SUITE 400 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIAQ4102-4921 

(415) 522-2490 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REVIEW REPORT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of the 
FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO (a nonprofit corporation) as of 
June 30, 2013 and the related statements of activities and net assets and cash 
flows for the year then ended. A review includes primarily applying analytical 
procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of the association 
management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective 
of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as 
a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America and for the designing, implementing, and 
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements. 

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on 
Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require us to perform procedures 
to obtain limited assurance that there are no material modifications that should 
be made to the financial statements. We believe that the results of our 
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our report. 

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should 
be made to the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in'the United States of 
America. 

The additional information on page ten is presented for supplementary analysis 
purposes only and has not been subjected to the inquiry and analytical procedures 
applied in the review of the financial statements. This supplementary schedule 
was compiled from information that is the representation of the management, 
without audit or review, and we, therefore, do not express an opinion or any 
other form of assurance on such data. 

San Francisco, California 
October 21, 2013 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

- STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2013 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

ASSETS 

- CURRENT ASSETS 

-

-
" -

-

Cash 
Assessments receivable 
Grant receivable 
Prepaid costs 

OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT - Net of 
accumulated depreciation (Note 3) 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ,_ Net of amortization 
(Note 4) 

LIABILITIES 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

UNRESTRICTED 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED (Notes 1 and 5) 

Bee notes to financial statements. 

Barlow & Hughan 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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$359,925 
16,849 

8,460 
11.770 

397,004 

2,875 

49,417 

$449,296 

$ 43,216 

397,620 

8,460 
406,080 

$449,296 



( 

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES 
Special benefit assessments 
Interest and other incoine 
Net assets released from restrictions 

EXPENDITURES 
Program services 

Landside - District identity and 
street improvements 

Landside - Street operations, 
beautification and-order 

Portside - District identity 
and street improvements 

General and administrative expenses 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

FUND BALANCES - Beginning of year 

FUND BALANCES - End of year 

See notes to financial statements. 

Barlow&. Hughan 
CZJtUl'UlJ PUBUC ACCOUHl'A.N'l3 

J'ISRBRMAN'S 1'H1JlF MISOCXATIOR OF SU l"RANCISCO 

STA'l:'EME'.NT OF ACTIVITIES AND NET ASSETS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

unres~ricted 

$761-,776 
s,S8S 
~ 

llL..!Il 

181,334 

341,l.56 

152,614 
liLJ!.11! 
!:l3!!. 082 

(47 ,621.) 

-~ 

$397,620 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ (23 I 800} 
.l£1.,__MQ) 

(23,800} 

32.260 

$ 8,460 

~ 

$761-, 176 
s,885 

767. 661 

181, 334 

341,156 

152,614 
;1,63,97!! 
B;J.li!, os;: 

(71,421) 

477,ijOl. 

$406.080 

-3-
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- FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Assessments received 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees 
Grants received 
Interest and other income received 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

- CASH FLOWS USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

' .... 

-
-

-

Purchase of office furniture and equipment 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 

CASH - Beginning of year 

CASH - End of year 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in net assets 
Items not requiring cash~ 

Depreciation and amortization 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in assessments receivable 
Decrease in grants receivable 
Increase in prepaid costs 
Increase in accounts payable 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

See notes to financial statements. 

Barlow & Hughan 
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$818,261 
(819, 607) 

23,800 
5,885 

28.339 

(2.981) 

25,358 

334,567 

$359. 925 

$(71,421) 

7,244 

56,485 
23,800 

(655) 
12.886 

$ &8.339 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OP SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

History and Operations 

The Fisherman's Wharf Association of San Francisco (the Association) 
was incorporated in California on February 23, 2006 as a non­
profit public benefit corporation. Its purpose is to provide 
services to the Fisherman's Wharf Landside and Portside Community 
Benefit Districts (the Districts) . The members of the Landside 
District include the owners of all parcels of land subject to 
property tax assessments within the geographic area of Fisherman's 
Wharf as established on July 26, 2005 by the Board of Supervisors 
of the City and County of San Francisco. Members of the Portside 
District include the tenants who have leased property from the 
Port of San Francisco within the Portside District as established 
by the Board of Supervisors on December 3, 2006. 

Upon formation of each District, its members were subject to multi­
year special assessments imposed by the City under the Property 
and Business Improvement District Law of 1994. Under contracts 
with the City, the Association receives these special assessments 
and, in exchange, provides certain services to the members of the 
Districts. These services include supplemental security services 
to maintain order, the cleaning and maintenance of sidewalks, the 
removal of graffiti, the coordination of services provided to the 
homeless, neighborhood beautification and tree-planting programs, 
and the organization and funding of special events. In addition 
to the special assessment funds, the contracts with the City 
require that the Association raise a specified level of private 
donations to supplement the special assessments. Management 
believes that during the year ended June 30, 2013, the 
organization has met this requirement. 

'l'he annual special assessments imposed by the City will expire on 
December 31, 2020, unless the Districts are disestablished earlier 
by a majority vote of its members. The Association's contracts 
with the city will expire on December 31, 2021, but both would 
also expire upon the disestablishment of either of the Districts. 

Barlow & Hughan 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARP' ASSOCIATION OF SAR FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

JUNE 30, 2013 

(See independent accountants' review report} 

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Basis of Presentation 

The Association reports information regarding its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets: 
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and 
permanently restricted net assets, based upon the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 

Income is recognized as temporarily restricted if restrictions 
imposed by the donor will not be satisfied by the end of the 
current year. At June 30, 2013 the Association had no permanently 
restricted net assets. 

Income is recognized when the special assessment imposed by the City 
becomes due and enforceable for collection by the City assessor. 
The City and County of San Francisco serves as an agen:t in 
collecting and transmitting the assessments. 

Assessments Receivable 

Assessments billed but not transmitted by the City at year end are 
recorded as receivables. Management believes that the receivables 
at June 30, 2013 are collectable by the City and no allowance is 
needed to provide for doubtful receivables. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ fro,m those 
estimates. 

Barlow & Hughan 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OP SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued} 

JUNE 30, 2013 

(See independent accountants' review report} 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Income Tax Status 

The Association qualifies as a tax exempt organization and is 
therefore generally exempt from income taxes. Income taxes are 
payable, however, on revenue from sources unrelated to its tax 
exempt purpose. There were no such revenues during the year. For 
the year ended June 30, 2013 there were no penalty or interest 
assessments by any government agency recorded in the financial 
statements. In addition, the Association has not taJt,en an 
unsubstantiated tax position that would require provision of a 
liability under Accounting standards Codificat;imt Topic 740, 
"Income Taxes". The Association's Forms 990, Return of 
Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the years ended June 30, 
2009 and later are subject to examinations by Federal and state 
taxing authorities. 

Donated Services 

A number of organizations have donated services and provided 
discounted rental and meeting space to the Association's 
activities. These donated services, however, are not reflected in 
the financial statements since they do not meet the criteria for 
recognition as contributed services under generally accepted 
accounting principles. Management estimates the value of these 
services to be $47,086. 

2. CASH 

• Cash at June 30, 2013 consisted of the following: 

Cash in checking account 
Cash deposited in interest-bearing account 

Barlow & Hughan 
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$ 47,464 
312.461 

$359,925 
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FISHERMAN'S WBARP ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

JUNE 30, 2013 

{See independent accountants' review report) 

3. OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 

4. 

Office furniture and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is 
provided using the straight-line method over five years. Depreciation 
charged to general and administrative expenses for the year ended June 
30, 2013 was $1,045. 

Office furniture and equipment at June 30, 2013 consisted of the 
following: 

Furniture and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

§2.875 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets are stated at cost. Amortization is provided using the 
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of between 
three to fifteen years. Amortization charged to general and 
administrative e:>cpenses for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $6,199. 

At June 30, 2013 net intangible assets were comprised of the following: 

Organization costs 
Website development costs 
Signage and logos 

Less accumulated amortization 

Barlow & Hughan 
CERTIFUU> PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

$ 93,551 
35,000 

9.432 
127,983 

78,566 

$ 49,417 
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FISHERMAN'S WHARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -(Continued) 

JUNE 30, 2013 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

5. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2013 was comprised of a 
grant which had not been received by year end. The grant was awarded 
by the City and County of San Francisco and is restricted to use in 
zero waste programs. 

6. RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES 

Special benefit assessments are received under a contract with the City 
and County of San Francisco and represent approximately 99% of the 
Association's total revenues. Under the terms of the contracts the 
City can suspend distributions and ultimately terminate the contracts 
if the Association fails to provide adequate services to the 
Districts. The contracts expire on December 31, 2021 and could be 
terminated at an earlier date if either the Fisherman's Wharf 
Community Landside or Portside Benefit Districts are disestablished 
by a vote of more than 50% of the assessed members. 

At June 30, 2013 the Association had uninsured cash deposits with a bank 
totaling approximately $154,000. 

7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In preparing these financial statements, the Association has evaluated 
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure 
through October 21, 2013, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

Barlow & Hugh an 
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Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 

Marketing and media 
production 

Street maintenance 
and operations 

Zero waste program 
Events marketing 
Hanging flower baskets 
Signage 
Insurance 
Security and parking 

operations 
Website maintenance 
Planning and zoning 
l\mbassador program 
Office expenses 
Professional fees 
Emergency preparedness 
Deprecation and 

amortization 
Occupancy 
Travel and meetings 
Miscellaneous 

FISHEBMAN'S Wi!ARF ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

(See independent accountants' review report) 

Program Services 
Land side 

District identity 
and street 

imorovements 

$ 28,306 
2,439 
~ 

32,504 

56,409 

48,277 

8,478 
3, 713 

28,156 

3,166 

631 

$181,334 

Street operations, 
beautification 

and order 

$ 33,800 
2, 927 
2..t..111 

38,838 

69,396 
28,485 

63,386 
50, 563 

64, 788 

19, i60 

6,.540 

$341.156 

Program Services 
Port side 

District identity 
and street 

improvements 

$ 28,306 
2,439 
l.759 

32,504 

4 6, 523 

32,083 

6,721 
3,016 

28, 156 

3,134 

477 

$152,614 

General and 
Administrative 

Landside 

$ Bl,241 
6,829 
4,925 

92 t 995 

5,088 

13, 493 
6,525 

7,244 
6;266 
1,149 

60 

$132,820 

Port side 

$20,310 
1,626 

---1.J.D. 
23,109 

1,272 

3,344 
1,564 

1,567 
287 

___ 1_5 

$31.158 

See notes to financial statements. 

Barlow & Hughan 
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$191,963 
16,260 
11. 727 

219,950 

102,<:l32 

69,396 
28,485 
60,360 
63, 3a6 
50,563 

6,360 

64, 788 
15,199 

6, 729 
75, 472 
16, s·37 
14, 389 

6,540 

7,244 
7,833 
1,436 
1, 183. 

$§39.082 
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Print Form 

Introduction Form 
By a Member of the Board of Supervisors or the Mayor 

Time stamp 

I hereby submit the following item for introduction (select only one): or meeting date 

D 1. For reference to Committee. (An Ordinance, Resolution, Motion, or Charter Amendment) 

l8l 2. Request for next printed agenda Without Reference to Committee. 

D 3. Request for hearing on a subject matter at Committee. 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

4. Request for letter beginning "Supervisor 

5. City Attorney request. 

6. Call File No .. .-, ----------.I from Committee. 

7. Budget Analyst request (attach written motion). 

8. Substitute Legislation File No. 
~-----~ 

9. Reactivate File No. I,__ _____ _, 

10. Question(s) submitted for Mayoral Appearance before the BOS on 

inquires" 

Please check the appropriate boxes. The proposed legislation should be forwarded to the following: 

D Small Business Commission D Youth Commission D Ethics Commission 

D Planning Commission D Building Inspection Commission 

Note: For the Imperative Agenda (a resolution not on the printed agenda), use a Imperative Form. 

Sponsor(s): 

!supervisor David Chiu 

Subject: 

Fisherman's Wharf and Fisherman's Wharf Portside Community Benefit Districts - Annual Reports to the City 

The text is listed below or attached: 

Resolution receiving and approving annual reports for the Fisherman's Wharf Community Benefit District 

For Clerk's Use Only: 

Signature of Sponsoring Supervisor: ____ B_~ __ _..---: _ __,U""-----------

"\ \ 
/'f /O~ 
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